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Second Quarter 2010 Report

Dear shareholders,

We are pleased to report a net profit attributable to UBS
shareholders of CHF 2,005 million. This was a good performance
in volatile market conditions. In the first half of 2010 we earned CHF
4,207 million, a marked improvement on the same period last year.
Diluted earnings per share for the quarter were CHF 0.52, making
earnings per share CHF 1.10 for the first half of 2010, compared with
a loss per share of CHF 0.96 in the first half of 2009. This is
considerable progress and we remain confident that we are on
course to meet our mid-term targets.

Revenues increased 2% compared with the first quarter to CHF
9,185 million. Wealth Management & Swiss Bank revenues were
stable at CHF 2,886 million and Wealth Management Americas
delivered revenue growth of 9%, despite growing client risk aversion.
Our major flow businesses in the Investment

Bank, equities and foreign exchange, achieved higher revenues, but
this was more than offset by reduced revenues, mostly in credit and
emerging markets, reflecting lower client activity levels. Our
investment banking department revenues decreased in the context of
a contraction of the global fee pool since the first quarter. This
quarter we recorded expenses of CHF 242 million in relation to the
UK Bank Payroll Tax (BPT), and a CHF 146 million charge for
restructuring costs, primarily in relation to real estate rationalization,
booked in Wealth Management Americas. These charges were the
main drivers of a 6% increase in operating expenses. Underlying
costs were broadly flat compared with the first quarter as lower
accruals for variable compensation offset higher general and
administrative expenses. Operating profit was CHF 2.6 billion in the
quarter compared with CHF 2.8 billion in the first quarter.
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Following Swiss parliamentary approval of the US-Swiss
Government Agreement, we continue to focus on
comprehensive and timely compliance with our obligations
under the agreements with the US Department of Justice and the
Securities and Exchange Commission. By October, UBS expects to
be in a position to achieve a comprehensive resolution of all
outstanding matters with the US Government related to the US
cross-border business. We would like to thank both the Swiss and
US governments and the Swiss parliament for their efforts to
satisfactorily resolve the US-Swiss Government Agreement.

Our risk management framework has proven to be robust in
testing market conditions. In light of these conditions, we adopted
a more cautious approach to risk-taking during the quarter. In the
Investment Bank, our average trading risk decreased and we
achieved further significant reductions in our residual risk positions.
Risk-weighted assets, at CHF 205 billion, were down slightly as we
continued to reduce the overall risk profile of the Group. While our
balance sheet increased by 8%, this mostly reflected higher
replacement values for our derivative instruments, which are highly
sensitive to market volatility. Our BIS tier 1 capital ratio continued to
increase and stood at 16.4% on 30 June 2010 compared with 16.0%
at the end of the prior quarter. Our FINMA leverage ratio was 4.1%,
unchanged from the first quarter. We continue to focus on cost
discipline, and the run-rate of our fixed costs remained in line with
our CHF 20 billion annual target.

We have improved the performance of our Wealth Management
& Swiss Bank business. Profits were broadly stable and net new
money outflows decreased to CHF 5.5 billion compared with CHF 8.2
billion in the first quarter.

Wealth Management’s pre-tax profit of CHF 658 million was 5%
lower than in the first quarter, as broadly stable revenues were offset
by higher operating expenses. The gross margin increased to 95
basis points per annum, up 2 basis points from the first quarter.
Stable revenues were earned on an invested asset base that
declined 2% quarter-on-quarter in average terms, mostly reflecting
the effects of lower market values. Expenses increased 2%, partly
due to the UK BPT charges as well as the full effect of annual salary
increases. At the end of the second quarter, client advisor numbers
stood at 4,112, down 1% from the previous quarter. Net new money
outflows continued to ease, with CHF 5.2 billion recorded in the
quarter compared with CHF 8.0 billion in the first quarter.

Retail & Corporate’s pre-tax result was CHF 473 million, up 2% on
the first quarter. Increased credit-related fee income more than offset
lower brokerage and sales commissions. Costs continued to be
tightly managed and the cost/income ratio for Retail & Corporate
remained stable at 52.1%.

During the quarter, Wealth Management Americas outlined a
number of key initiatives to build revenues, improve financial
advisor retention and streamline the cost base to meet the CHF 1
billion pre-tax profit target previously announced at our Investor Day
in 2009. The second phase of the cost restructuring program was
initiated during this quarter, with CHF 146 million of costs booked
primarily in relation to a reduction in the property portfolio. Wealth
Management Americas recorded a pre-tax loss of CHF 67 million
compared with a pre-tax profit of CHF 15 million in the first quarter.
However, excluding restructuring charges, the pre-tax profit improved
to CHF 79 million compared with CHF 36 million in the first quarter.
Net new money inflows, including US interest and dividends as is
consistent with US market practice, were CHF 2.0 billion. For the
second quarter in succession, net new money was generated by
financial advisors employed with UBS for more than one year. We
are also encouraged by reduced attrition rates overall across our
financial advisor force, a key driver of net new money inflows.

In Global Asset Management, net new money inflows from third-
party clients were CHF 11.0 billion in the quarter. Over-all, net
new money inflows were CHF 3.4 billion, as inflows from third-party
clients were partially offset by outflows from clients of UBS’s wealth
management businesses. Pre-tax profit was CHF 117 million
compared with CHF 137 million in the first quarter. Revenues were
stable with higher management fees offsetting declining performance
fees in a volatile market. Costs increased 5% due to amortization of
prior year compensation awards.

The Investment Bank is making good progress against its
strategic goals. The Investment Bank recorded a pre-tax profit of
CHF 1,314 million compared with CHF 1,190 million in the first
quarter. Equities revenues were up 9% compared with the first
quarter at CHF 1,365 million, demonstrating the strength of our
largest flow business in unstable markets. Revenues in the fixed
income, currencies and commodities trading business declined to
CHF 1,703 million, due to defensive positioning of our books in the
quarter and lower client activity, with declines in credit and emerging
markets offsetting gains in our foreign exchange business, which
benefited from higher market volatility and stronger client flows.
Taken together, the Investment Bank’s revenues, excluding a CHF
595 million own credit gain on financial liabilities designated at fair
value, decreased 15%. Costs were CHF 2,788 million, up 3% on the
previous quarter, but included a CHF 228 million charge relating to
the UK BPT. Excluding this tax, costs fell on reduced accruals for
variable compensation.

During the second quarter, we took another important step in
expanding our presence into emerging markets by agreeing to
acquire Link Investimentos, one of the largest independent bro-



ker-dealers in Brazil. We believe that it is crucial to have an on-the-
ground presence with local expertise to serve our clients in Brazil.

We are working to strengthen and position the new UBS for
longer-term success. Our recently refreshed graduate recruitment
and internship programs have already started to deliver, with the
class of 2010 so far attracting 669 new graduates and 829 interns.

Switzerland is our home market and is at the heart of UBS. We
have a long and proud heritage here and we will continue to
invest in our home market. We want to ensure that our valued
Swiss customers continue to enjoy the best possible service at UBS.
As part of this commitment, we will be investing in the refurbishment
of all of our 300 branch offices, the most comprehensive
refurbishment in our history. Our customers will be welcomed into our
branches which have been designed specifically to improve our
customers’ banking experience, helping to ensure that UBS remains
the first choice in Switzerland. We are also continuing our tradition of
supporting organizations and individuals within the communities in
which we live and work. We are delighted to announce that we are
supporting the UBS Kids Cup, an athletics competition that will
involve up to 70,000 children aged 7 to 15, helping to promote health
and well-being across the country.

The regulatory landscape for large financial institutions
continued to develop dynamically, nationally and internationally, in
the areas of capital, liquidity, compensation and corporate structure.
The G20 and the Financial Stability Board emphasized the need to
ensure that transition arrangements to new standards do not put the
economic recovery at risk. Major recent events have included the
completion of the consultation and impact analysis phase of the
“Basel 3” process to develop new international capital and liquidity
standards, and the passage of financial regulatory reform in the US.
It will take some time before the regulatory changes on national and
international levels, and their consequences for UBS and other major
financial institutions, are clear.

Outlook — Concerns about the sustainability of the global economic
recovery may leave markets volatile and with little direction. We
believe that this could lead to more subdued client activity levels
across our businesses. In addition, we expect that our portfolio
management fee income will be lower than in the second quarter due
to the lower level of invested assets at the end of June.

We are delivering on our strategy and expect to make further
progress over the coming quarters. We are confident about our
future.

27 July 2010

Yours sincerely,

Oswald J. Gribel
Group Chief Executive Officer

Kaspar Villiger
Chairman of the
Board of Directors
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UBS key figures

For the quarter ended Year-to-date
CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Group results
Operating income 9,185 9,010 5,770 18,195
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax 2,614 2,810 (1,323) 5,424
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 2,005 2,202 (1,402) 4,207
Diluted earnings per share (CHF)! 0.52 0.58 (0.39) 1.10
Key performance indicators, balance sheet and capital management?
Performance
B 0N QU (RO ) (0] e 195 ...210)
Return on risk-weighted assets, gross (%) 17.5 8.9
Return on assets, gross (%) 2.6 1.3

Net new money (CHF billion)4 4.7) (18.0) (39.5) (22.7) (54.4)

Efficiency

Cost / income ratio (%) 71.2 69.7 115.2 70.5 111.1
As of

CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 31.12.09

Gl S NG N

B g T o G g 154 .............................................

EIRRA TGvarage, Tl G P R g

Balance sheet and capital management

Equity attributable to UBS shareholders 46,017 42,800 41,013

BIS total ratio (%) 20.4 20.0 19.8

BIS ASk-WOIQMOA BSSIST oo onsssss s 204848 .. 209,138 . 208,825 .o
BIS or 1 oapitall e s5d0q e

Additional information

equivalents)
Market capitalization® 55,393 65,660 57,108
1 Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the “Financial information” section of this report. 2 For the definitions of our key performance indicators refer to the

“Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009. 3 Not meaningful if either the current period or the comparison period is a loss period. # Excludes interest
and dividend income. 5 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report. ¢ Refer to the appendix “UBS registered shares” of this report.
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UBS and its businesses

UBS draws on its 150-year heritage to serve private, institutional and corporate clients worldwide, as well as retail clients in
Switzerland. We combine our wealth management, investment banking and asset management businesses with our Swiss operations
to deliver superior financial solutions and manage CHF 2.2 trillion in invested assets. Headquartered in Zurich and Basel, Switzerland,
UBS has offices in more than 50 countries, including all major financial centers, and employs approximately 64,000 people. Under
Swiss company law, UBS is organized as an Aktiengesellschaft, a corporation that has issued shares of common stock to investors.
UBS AG is the parent company of the UBS Group (Group). The operational structure of the Group comprises the Corporate Center and
four business divisions: Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, Wealth Management Americas, Global Asset Management and the

Investment Bank.
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank focuses on delivering
comprehensive financial services to high net worth and ultra high net
worth individuals around the world — except to those served by
Wealth Management Americas — as well as private and corporate
clients in Switzerland. Our “Wealth Management” business unit
provides clients in over 40 countries, including Switzerland, with
financial advice, products and tools to fit their individual needs. Our
“Retail & Corporate” business unit has a leading position across its
client segments in Switzerland.

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas provides advice-based relationships
through financial advisors who deliver a fully integrated set of
products and services specifically designed to address the needs of
ultra high net worth, high net worth and core affluent individuals and
families. It includes the Wealth Management US business, as well as
the domestic Canadian business and the international business
booked in the United States.

Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management is a large-scale asset manager with
businesses diversified across regions, capabilities and distribution
channels. It offers investment capabilities and investment styles
across all major traditional and alternative asset classes. These
include equities, fixed income, currency, hedge fund, real estate and
infrastructure investment capabilities that can also be combined in
multi-asset strategies. The fund services unit provides legal fund set-
up and accounting and reporting for all retail and institutional funds.

Investment Bank

The Investment Bank provides securities and other financial products
and research in equities, fixed income, rates, foreign exchange and
precious metals. It also provides advisory services and access to the
world’s capital markets for corporate and institutional clients,
governments, financial intermediaries, alternative asset managers
and private investors.

Corporate Center

The Corporate Center provides and manages support and control
functions for the Group in such areas as risk control, finance, legal
and compliance, funding, capital and balance sheet management,
management of foreign currencies, communication and branding,
human resources, information technology, real estate, procurement,
corporate development and service centres. Most costs and
personnel of the Corporate Center are allocated to the business
divisions.
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Group results

Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders was CHF 2,005 million in second quarter 2010 compared with CHF 2,202 million in the first
quarter. The significant gain on own credit, compared with an own credit loss in the prior quarter, was partially offset by the reduction
of business revenues, primarily in the Investment Bank’s fixed income, currencies and commodities business.

Income statement

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09

Continuing operations

Interest income 4,864 6,035 1 (19) 9661 13,680
nforest expange T gaay S R s S (i6.636)
Net interest income 1,093 1,143 (40) (4) 2,911 3,042
Credit loss (expense) / recovery (48) (388) (88) 68 (1,523)
Net interest income after credit loss expense 1,045 755 (46) 38 2,979 1,519
Kot fos And commission oo, R Fgs e R grag 8744
Net trading income 3,450 220 46 5,818 (410)
Other income 324 292 (4) 11 660 887
Total operating income 9,185 5,770 2 59 18,195 10,740
Personnel expenses 4,645 4,578 3 1 9,166 8,542
General and administrative expenses 1,638 1,699 15 (4) 3,057 3,334
Dapraciation of property and equipment T for oy agi 35
Impairment of goodwill 0 492 (100) 0 1,123
Amortization of intangible assets 31 39 15 (21) 58 84
Total operating expenses 6,571 7,093 6 (7) 12,772 13,621
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax 2,614 (1,323) (7) 5,424 (2,881)
Tax expense 311 (208) (48) 914 86
Net profit from continuing operations 2,303 (1,115) 4 4,509 (2,967)
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations before tax 0 2 7 (100) (0 2 17
o oxpanss g G A g G
Net profit from discontinued operations 0 2 7 (100) (100) 2 17
Net profit 2,303 2,208 (1,108) 4 4,511 (2,949)
Net profit attributable to minority interests 298 6 294 1 304 427
from continuing operations 298 5 290 3 303 418
from discontinued operations 0 1 4 (100) (100) 1 9
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 2,005 2,202 (1,402) 9) 4207 (3,376)
..... trom Continling oprationg Gl e (5.365)
from discontinued operations 0 1 3 (100) (100) 1 8
Performance by business division
Wealth Management 658 696 542 (5) 21 1,354 1,177
Retail & Corporate 473 465 390 2 21 938 832
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 1,131 1,161 932 (3) 21 2,293 2,009
Wiealth Management Amerioas G jg T g gy (556
Global Asset Management 117 137 82 (15) 43 254 24
Investment Bank 1,314 1,190 a.e46) 10 2504 . (5,008)
Transiy aciiviios and st coraraia o Jyg 08 e R dpE 351
Operating profit from continuing operations before tax 2,614 2,810 (1,323) (7) 5,424 (2,881)




Operating income: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Total operating income increased to CHF 9,185 million from CHF
9,010 million.

Net interest and trading income is analyzed below under the
relevant business activities in order to provide a better explanation of
the movements.

= Refer to “Note 3 Net interest and trading income” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information

Net income from trading businesses
Net income from trading businesses was CHF 3,008 million, up from
CHF 2,700 million.

The own credit gain on financial liabilities designated at fair value
was CHF 595 million, compared with a loss of CHF 247 million in first
quarter 2010, primarily due to a widening of our credit spreads during
the quarter.

Increases in equity derivatives trading revenues and in prime
brokerage were more than offset by lower trading revenues in fixed
income, currencies and commodities. Credit, emerging markets and
interest rate trading revenues declined significantly on the first
quarter due to clients’ increased risk aversion and lower resultant
activity levels.

=2 Refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information on own credit

Net interest and trading income

UBS Group

Net income from interest margin businesses

Net income from interest margin businesses was CHF 1,166 million
compared with CHF 1,119 million, mainly due to increased treasury-
related interest income in Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and
higher investment portfolio income in Wealth Management Americas.
This was partially offset by continuing pressure on interest margins in
our wealth management businesses.

Net income from treasury activities and other
Net income from treasury activities and other was CHF 369 million
compared with CHF 367 million.

Second quarter 2010 included a gain of CHF 68 million on the
revaluation of our option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity,
compared with a gain of CHF 231 million in first quarter 2010. This
decline was offset by gains from treasury activities.

= Refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial

information” section of this report for more information on the
valuation of our option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity

Credit loss expense / recovery
We experienced a net credit loss expense of CHF 48 million in
second quarter 2010, compared with a net recovery of CHF 116
million in first quarter 2010.

The Investment Bank reported a net credit loss expense in second
quarter 2010 of CHF 39 million, compared with a net

For the quarter ended

% change from Year-to-date

CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Net interest income 1,093 1,818 1,143 (40) (4) 2,911 3,042
Nt rading ingome S gy e i
Total net interest and trading income 4,543 4,186 1,363 9 233 8,729 2,632
Breakdown by businesses
Net income from trading businesses! 3,008 2,700 (207) 11 5,708 (847)
Net income from interest margin businesses 1,166 1,119 1,302 4 (10) 2,285 2,623
Nat income from treasary activiies and other " agg s g B g S s
Total net interest and trading income 4,543 4,186 1,363 9 233 8,729 2,632
1 Includes lending activities of the Investment Bank.
Credit loss (expense) / recovery

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Wealth Management (1) 1 30 0 (24)
Retail & Corporate (7) 2 (50) (86) (5) (115)
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank (8) 3 (20) (60) (4) (139)
Wealth Management Americas (1) 0 1 0 2
Investment Bank (39) 112 (369) (89) 73 (1,386)
R W oy o) PR S (S 556)”
Total (48) 116 (388) (88) 68 (1,523)
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recovery of CHF 112 million in first quarter 2010. This was primarily
due to credit losses on student loan auction rate securities, partially
offset by recoveries on certain legacy leveraged finance positions.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank reported a net credit loss
expense of CHF 8 million in second quarter 2010, compared with a
net recovery of CHF 3 million in the prior quarter.

= Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this report for
more information on credit risk

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income was CHF 4,366 million, compared

with CHF 4,372 million in the previous quarter.

— Underwriting fees were down 15% at CHF 402 million. Both equity
and debt underwriting fees decreased due to an overall slowdown
in the market.

— Mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance fees were CHF
163 million, down 20% from the first quarter, which included fee
income from the completion of two significant transactions.

— Net brokerage fees increased 7% to CHF 1,075 million, mainly
due to increased volumes in the Investment Bank’s equities
businesses and in Wealth Management Americas.

— Investment fund fees were CHF 1,012 million, unchanged from
the previous quarter.

— Portfolio management and advisory fees increased 1% to CHF
1,538 million due to higher managed account fees in Wealth
Management Americas, which were partly offset by lower
performance fees in the alternative and quantitative investments
business within Global Asset Management.

— Other commission expenses were CHF 251 million, virtually
unchanged from the previous quarter.

= Refer to “Note 4 Net fee and commission income” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information

Other income
Other income was CHF 324 million compared with CHF 337 million.
Second quarter 2010 included gains of CHF 178 million on sales of
loans and receivables including sales and issuer redemptions of
auction rate securities, as well as a demutualization gain of CHF 69
million from the stake in the Chicago Board Options Exchange.

First quarter 2010 included a CHF 180 million gain from the sale of
investments in associates owning office space in New York, gains
from the disposal of reclassified financial assets and a nega-

10

tive CHF 28 million valuation adjustment on a property fund held by
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank.

=2 Refer to “Note 5 Other income” in the “Financial information” section
of this report for more information

Operating expenses: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Personnel expenses

Personnel expenses were CHF 4,645 million compared with CHF
4,521 million. This increase mainly reflects the UK BPT charge of
CHF 242 million recorded in second quarter 2010, partly offset by
reduced accruals for variable compensation.

= Refer to “Note 6 Personnel expenses" in the “Financial information”
section of this report for more information

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses were CHF 1,638 million in the
second quarter compared with CHF 1,419 million in the first quarter.
This increase was due to restructuring charges of CHF 90 million
related to real estate in Wealth Management Americas and increases
across most cost categories.

= Refer to “Note 7 General and administrative expenses” in the
“Financial information” section of this report for more information

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property and equipment was CHF 257 million, up
CHF 23 million, largely due to impairments of CHF 37 million related
to the abovementioned real estate restructuring in the US.
Amortization of intangible assets was CHF 31 million compared with
CHF 27 million in the previous quarter.

Tax expenses: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

We recognized a tax expense in our income statement for second
quarter 2010 of CHF 311 million. This includes a deferred tax
expense of CHF 464 million as Swiss tax losses (for which deferred
tax assets have previously been recognized) are used against profits
for the quarter and also tax expenses of CHF 89 million in other
locations. These tax expenses were partially offset by an increase in
deferred tax assets for prior year tax losses of CHF 187 million, and
a tax benefit of CHF 55 million for tax losses agreed with a foreign
tax authority.

We recognized a tax expense in our income statement for first
quarter 2010 of CHF 603 million, which mainly related to a deferred
tax expense of CHF 565 million as Swiss tax losses (for



which deferred tax assets have previously been recognized) were
used against profits for the quarter.

Net profit attributable to minority interests: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Net profit attributable to minority interests includes the recognition of
dividend obligation for preferred securities of CHF 296 million in
second quarter 2010.

Invested assets development: 2Q10 vs 1Q10
Net new money

Wealth Management
Net new money outflows reduced further to CHF 5.2 billion from CHF
8.0 billion. We saw continued net inflows in the Asia Pacific region,
from ultra high net worth clients and in certain European locations.
Overall, net new money in Europe remained slightly negative but net
outflows decreased again compared with the prior quarter.
International wealth management net new money outflows were
almost halved to CHF 3.9 billion from CHF 6.8 billion in the previous
quarter. Total outflows from Swiss wealth management were CHF
1.3 billion compared with CHF 1.2 billion in the first quarter.

Retail & Corporate
Net outflows were CHF 0.3 billion compared with CHF 0.2 billion.

Net new money!

UBS Group

Wealth Management Americas
Net new money outflows were CHF 2.6 billion compared with CHF
7.2 billion.

The Wealth Management US business net new money outflows
were CHF 2.9 billion compared with CHF 6.4 billion. Financial advisor
retention initiatives resulted in lower outflows related to financial
advisor attrition, while net new money inflows from financial advisors
employed with UBS for more than one year declined slightly from the
prior quarter, but remained positive for the second consecutive
quarter. Including interest and dividends for Wealth Management US
consistent with US market practice, Wealth Management US and
Wealth Management Americas had positive net new money for the
quarter.

Global Asset Management

In the second quarter, we recorded positive net new money of CHF
3.4 billion compared with net outflows of CHF 2.6 billion in the prior
quarter.

Net inflows from third parties of CHF 10.9 billion were partially
offset by net outflows of CHF 7.5 billion from clients of our wealth
management businesses.

Excluding money market flows, net new money inflows were CHF
6.2 billion compared with net outflows of CHF 1.6 billion in first
quarter 2010.

= Refer to the various discussions of net new money flows in the “UBS
business divisions” section of this report for more information

For the quarter ended Year-to-date

CHF billion 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Wealth Management (5.2) (8.0) (15.6) (13.1) (38.0)
Retail & Corporate (0.3) (0.2) (0.9) (0.5) (1.9)
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank (5.5) (8.2) (16.5) (13.7) (39.9)
Wealth Management Americas (2.6) (7.2) (5.8) (9.8) 10.3
T O Y S OIS e A5 o (.0) o 189 35 (19.0)
Alternative and quantitative investments (12 T a4 T (12 T ze)y T (5.9)
Global real estate 0.1 0.7 0.0 0.8 0.1
Infrastructure 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1
Global Asset Management 3.4 (2.6) (17.1) 0.8 (24.9)

1 Excludes interest and dividend income.
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Group results

Invested assets

% change from

CHF billion 31.3.10 30.6.09
Wealth Management (6)
Botal & Comarall B
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank (5)

Wealth Management Americas

Traditional investments

Alternative and quantitative investments

Global Asset Management

Total

2,180 2,267 2,250

Invested assets

Invested assets were CHF 2,180 billion on 30 June 2010 compared
with CHF 2,267 billion on 31 March 2010. This decrease was mainly
due to negative market movements.

Results: 6M10 vs 6M09

Net profit attributable to shareholders was CHF 4,207 million
compared with a net loss attributable to shareholders of CHF 3,376
million. This was mainly due to a recovery of trading in-

Personnel by region

come and a change to a credit loss recovery from credit loss
expense. Operating expenses were lower at CHF 12,772 million
compared with CHF 13,621 million. Half year 2009 operating
expenses included goodwill impairment charges of CHF 1,123
million.

Personnel: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

UBS employed 63,876 personnel on 30 June 2010 compared with
64,293 on 31 March 2010.

% change from

Full-time equivalents 31.3.10 30.6.09
Switzerland (1)

UK 0

'ﬁé'é't"'c')'f'"l'é'ﬂrﬁﬁé ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. G
T

us

Asia Pacific 6,944 6,922 9,144 0 (24)
Total 63,876 64,293 71,806 (1) (11)
Personnel by business division
As of % change from

Full-time equivalents 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 31.3.10 30.6.09
Wealth Management 15,352 15,365 16,891 0 9)
Retail & Corporate 11,989 12,187 12,477 2) (4)
Wealth Management & Swiss Bank 27,341 27,552 29,367 (1) (7)
Wealth Management Americas 16,341 16,667 18,774 (2) (13)
Global Asset Management 3,454 3,521 3,718 (2) (7)
Investment Bank 16,552 16,373 16,922 1 (2)
Treasury activities and other corporate items 188 180 3,024 4 (94)
Total 63,876 64,293 71,806 (1) (11)
T T T Toses 5iggg  E— GiEy
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UBS business
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Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Income 2,893 2,879 2,934 0 (1) 5,772 5,946
Credit loss (expense) / recovery (8) 3 (20) (60) (4) (139)
Total operating income 2,886 2,882 2,914 0 (1) 5,767 5,806
Personnel expenses 1,201 1,191 1,422 1 (16) 2,391 2,700
General and administrative expenses 483 471 513 3 (6) 954 1,009
Services (to) / from other business divisions (12) (24) (26) 50 54 (36) (55)
'Ijé'b'r'éé'ié't'i"ciﬁ"6f'ﬁfé'béfiy"éha"édﬁiﬁhﬁ'éhf ........................................................ g go e Jo dag ias
Amortization of intangible assets 5 2 6 150 17) 7 9
Total operating expenses 1,754 1,720 1,983 2 (12) 3,475 3,797
Business division performance before tax 1,131 1,161 932 (3) 21 2,293 2,009
Key performance indicators!
Pre-tax profit growth (%) (2.6) 4.7 (13.5) 141 (47.4)
st T inGome ratio (30) Gog ggig o GO e
Net new money (CHF billion)2 (5.5) (8.2) (16.5) (13.7) (39.9)
Additional information
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)3 9.0 9.0 9.0 0 0
Return on attributed equity (RoaE) (%) 51.0 44.6
BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion) 46.2 48.5 51.8 (5) (11)
ﬁé't'ﬁ”r'ﬁ"6}'1"'Fi"s'l'k'-'i)\'ié'iéﬁ'téa'éi's”ééié;"é'r"déé”('%')' ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. D R
”GEi'c')'dWii'l"é{ﬁd"i'h't'éﬁ"diﬁié'555&5"('CH'if"Bi'l'l'i'éﬁ') ............................................... g g g G g
Invested assets (CHF billion) 917 963 961 (5) (5)
Client assets (CHF billion) 1,780 1,864 f7se 6 L
Barsommai Tl Seaivalaniay T o D T T g ——

1 For the definitions of our key performance indicators, refer to the “Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009.
income. @ Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework.
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UBS business divisions

Wealth Management

Pre-tax profit decreased 5% to CHF 658 million from CHF 696 million in the previous quarter due to a 1% decrease in operating income
and higher operating expenses.

Business unit reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Recurring income 1,399 1,384 1,426 1 2) 2,783 2,954
Non-recurring income 493 518 466 (5) 6 1,011 896
Income 1,892 1,903 1,892 (1) 0 3,794 3,850
Credit loss (expense) / recovery 1) 1 30 0 (24)
Total operating income 1,891 1,904 1,923 (2) 3,795 3,826
Personnel expenses 797 782 924 (14) 1,578 1,770
General and administrative expenses 276 275 316 (13) 551 622

Services (to) / from other business divisions 113 106 219

Amortization of intangible assets
Total operating expenses 1,232 1,208 1,381
Business unit performance before tax 658 696 542

Key performance indicators!
Pre-tax profit growth (%)

Net new money (CHF billion)2

Gross margin on invested assets (bps)3 95 2 2 94 95
Swiss wealth management

Income 396 388 368 2 8 784 762
Net new money (CHF billion)2 (1.3) . . (2.4) (3.2)

Gross margin on invested assets (bps) 115 110 112 5 3 112 116

International wealth management

INCOME oot 1495 8IS 1524 ) @) 3010 3,088
Riat maww oy (GHE By s P R R 7 o G
Invested assets (CHF billion) 652 685 697 (5) (6)

Gross margin on invested assets (bps)3 90 90 89 0 1 90 91

Additional information

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)* 4.4 4.4 4.4 0 0

Retum on attributed equity (RoaE) (%) 615 535
BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF bilion) 176 185 195 ey oy
Return on risk-weighted assets, gross (%) 41.9 36.5
Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billion) 1.6 1.6 1.8 0 (11)

ivested assets (CHF billon) T gge gy g g g
Gilont assets (GHI bilion) gag T T (B ——
Client advisors (full-time equivalents) 4,112 4,138 4,744 (1) (13)

Personnel (full-time equivalents) 15,352 15,365 16,891 0 9)

1 For the definitions of our key performance indicators, refer to the “Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009. 2 Excludes interest and dividend
income. 3 Excludes negative valuation adjustments on a property fund (2Q10: CHF 17 million, 1Q10: CHF 28 million, 2Q09: CHF 13 million). “ Refer to the “Capital management” section of this
report for more information about the equity attribution framework.
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Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
Results: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Operating income
Total operating income was CHF 1,891 million compared with CHF
1,904 million.

Recurring income was up 1% at CHF 1,399 million compared with
CHF 1,384 million as higher lombard loan volumes and first-time
inclusion of treasury income were partly offset by the effects of a
sharp decrease of the euro against the Swiss franc. Non-recurring
income was CHF 493 million, down from CHF 518 million in the prior
quarter.

From second quarter 2010 onwards, 30% of treasury-related
revenues have been shifted to Wealth Management from Retail &
Corporate, impacting interest and trading income by CHF 24 million
in second quarter 2010. If we had applied the same approach in
previous quarters the impact would have been approximately CHF 20
million.

Net credit loss expense was CHF 1 million compared with net
credit loss recovery of CHF 1 million in first quarter 2010.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses increased 2% to CHF 1,232 million from CHF
1,208 million due to higher personnel expenses.

Personnel expenses increased 2% to CHF 797 million, mainly due
to a CHF 15 million charge related to the UK Bank Payroll Tax in
April 2010 and annual salary increases effective March 2010.

General and administrative expenses were broadly stable at CHF
276 million. Net charges from other businesses were up by CHF 7
million to CHF 113 million.

Depreciation slightly decreased by CHF 1 million to CHF 42 million
and amortization of intangible assets increased by CHF 3 million to
CHF 5 million.

Invested assets development: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Net new money
Net new money outflows reduced further to CHF 5.2 billion from CHF
8.0 billion. We saw continued net inflows in the Asia Pacific region,
from ultra high net worth clients and in certain European locations.
Overall, net new money in Europe remained slightly negative but net
outflows decreased again compared with the prior quarter.
International wealth management net new money outflows almost
halved to CHF 3.9 billion from CHF 6.8 billion in the previous quarter.
Total outflows from Swiss wealth management were CHF 1.3 billion
compared with CHF 1.2 billion in the first quarter.
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Invested assets

Invested assets were CHF 786 billion on 30 June 2010, a decrease
of CHF 41 billion from 31 March 2010. This was due to lower equity
markets, a 7% decrease in the euro against the Swiss franc over the
quarter and net new money outflows.

Gross margin on invested assets

The gross margin on invested assets for Wealth Management stood
at 95 basis points, an improvement of 2 basis points compared with
the prior quarter as stable revenues were earned on an average
invested asset base, which declined by 2%, mostly reflecting the
effects of lower markets. The gross margin computation excludes
valuation adjustments on a property fund. Recurring income margin
increased 2 basis points to 69 basis points. The non-recurring
income margin was unchanged at 26 basis points.

Personnel: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Wealth Management employed 15,352 personnel on 30 June 2010
compared with 15,365 on 31 March 2010.

The number of client advisors declined by 26, or 1%, to 4,112,
reflecting staff reductions initiated in 2009 and voluntary departures
in 2010.

Results: 6M10 vs 6M09

Pre-tax profit increased 15% to CHF 1,354 million from CHF 1,177
million. This improvement was due to an 8% reduction in operating
expenses reflecting restructuring expenses in the first half of 2009 as
well as reduced headcount.

Total operating income, at CHF 3,795 million, was down slightly
from CHF 3,826 million in the first half of 2009.

No net credit loss expense was recorded in the first half of 2010 as
no major new credit events occurred. This compares with a net credit
loss expense of CHF 24 million in the first half of 2009.

Operating expenses were reduced by 8% as a result of cost-cutting
measures initiated in 2009. Personnel expenses decreased 11% to
CHF 1,578 million, reflecting restructuring expenses in the first half of
2009, as well as a 9% reduction in personnel levels. Non-personnel
expenses were down 2% to CHF 862 million from CHF 878 million.

= Refer to “Note 1 Basis of accounting” in the “Financial information”
section of this report for more information on allocation of additional

Corporate Center costs to business divisions from first quarter 2010
onwards



UBS business divisions

Retail & Corporate

Pre-tax profit increased 2% to CHF 473 million from CHF 465 million in the previous quarter. Higher income was partially offset by
higher expenses.

Business unit reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date

CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Interest income 609 604 701 1 (13) 1,213 1,384
Non-interest income 393 372 340 6 16 765 711
Income 1,002 976 1,042 3 (4) 1,977 2,096
Credit loss (expense) / recovery 7) 2 (50) (86) (5) (115)
Total operating income 995 978 992 2 0 1,973 1,980
Personnel expenses 404 409 498 (1) (19) 813 929
General and administrative expenses 207 196 197 6 5 403 387
Services (to) / from other business divisions (125) (130) (124) 4 (1) (255) (227)
Biaraciation of Bromarty And Saummmant gy i ja g 5
Total operating expenses 522 512 602 2 (13) 1,034 1,149
Business unit performance before tax 473 465 390 2 21 938 832

Key performance indicators!
Pre-tax profit growth (%) 1.7
Cost / income ratio (%)

Impaired lending portfolio as a % of total lending
portfolio, gross 0.9 1.1 1.1

Additional information

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)® =~~~ A8 o A6 A8 ) L
Bt o 'édu'it)'/' (ﬁo'élé)"(""/&j ..................................................................................................................................... T R 565
BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion) 28.6 30.1 32.3 (5) (11)

Return On Msk-WeIGhEd ASSEUS, GrOSS (%) e 182 120
Goodwill and intangibie assets (CHF billion) 00 00 T 0.0
Invested assets (CHF billion) 131 136 128 (4) 2

Client assets (CHF billion) 826 861 748 (4) 10

Personnel (full-time equivalents) 11,989 12,187 12,477 (2) (4)

1 For the definitions of our key performance indicators, refer to the “Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009. 2 Excludes interest and dividend

income. 2 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework.

17



Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
Results: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Operating income
Total operating income increased slightly to CHF 995 million from
CHF 978 million.

Interest income increased to CHF 609 million from CHF 604 million
as treasury-related interest revenues increased during the second
quarter. Non-interest income was CHF 393 million, up from CHF 372
million in the prior quarter, mainly reflecting higher credit-related fees,
partly offset by lower brokerage and sales commissions.

From second quarter 2010 onwards, 30% of treasury-related
revenues have been shifted to Wealth Management from Retail &
Corporate, impacting interest and trading income by CHF 24 million
in the second quarter. If we had applied the same approach in
previous quarters the impact would have been approximately CHF 20
million.

Credit loss expense increased, but remained at very low level, and
was CHF 7 million compared with net credit loss recovery of CHF 2
million.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses were up 2% to CHF 522 million from CHF 512
million.

Personnel expenses were reduced by CHF 5 million to CHF 404
million as voluntary departures were only selectively replaced. This
was partly offset by annual salary increases, which took effect in
March 2010.

General and administrative expenses were up by CHF 11 million to
CHF 207 million.

Net charges to other businesses decreased by CHF 5 million to
CHF 125 million.

18

Invested assets development: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Net new money
Net outflows were CHF 0.3 billion compared with CHF 0.2 billion.

Invested assets

Invested assets were CHF 131 billion on 30 June 2010, down CHF 5
billion from the level at 31 March 2010, reflecting lower equity market
values as well as a 7% decrease in the euro against the Swiss franc

over the quarter.

Personnel: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Retail & Corporate employed 11,989 personnel on 30 June 2010,
down 198 from 12,187 on 31 March 2010. This was partially due to
voluntary departures, which were only selectively replaced.

Results: 6M10 vs 6MO09

Pre-tax profit increased 13% to CHF 938 million from CHF 832
million, principally due to a 10% reduction in operating expenses.
This was mainly due to restructuring charges in the first half of 2009,
lower headcount and higher net charges to other businesses.

Total operating income was virtually unchanged at CHF 1,973
million compared with CHF 1,980 million.

Credit loss expense was CHF 5 million compared with CHF 115
million in the first half of 2009 as no major new credit events
occurred.

Operating expenses were reduced 10% as a result of cost-cutting
measures initiated in 2009. Personnel expenses decreased 12% to
CHF 813 million, reflecting restructuring expenses in the first half of
2009 and a 4% reduction in personnel levels. Non-personnel
expenses were CHF 221 million, virtually stable compared with CHF
219 million in the first half of 2009.

= Refer to “Note 1 Basis of accounting” in the “Financial information”

section of this report for more information on allocation of additional

Corporate Center costs to business divisions from first quarter 2010
onwards



UBS business divisions

Wealth Management Americas

Wealth Management Americas

The pre-tax result was negative CHF 67 million in second quarter 2010 compared with a pre-tax profit of CHF 15 million in the prior
quarter. Second quarter results included restructuring charges of CHF 146 million. Excluding restructuring charges, profitability
improved, primarily due to higher income.

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Recurring income 838 787 12 19 1,773 1,610
'Nb'h:'r'é'éﬁ'r}iﬁg"'i”h'(:'c'i'ﬁi'é .................................................................................................................................... g B g R ea es
Income 1,361 1,367 9 9 2,847 2,775

Credit loss (expense) / recovery
Total operating income
Personnel expenses

Financial advisor compensation?

General and administrative expenses
Services (to) / from other business divisions

Impairment of goodwill 0 0 15 (100) 0 34
Amortization of intangible assets 15 14 16 7 (6) 29 33
Total operating expenses 1,552 1,347 1,589 15 (2) 2,899 3,033
Business division performance before tax (67) 15 (221) 70 (52) (256)

Key performance indicators3

Pre-tax profit growth (%)4 N/A (91.6) N/A N/A N/A
ot NGO e (o o goip G ioig 65"
Net new money (CHF billion)5 (2.6) (7.2) (5.8) (9.8) 10.3
Gross margin on invested assets (bps) 84 78 80 8 5 81 83

Additional information
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)® 8.0 8.0 9.0 0 (11)

BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion) 23.5 23.0 23.2 2 1

Return on risk-weighted assets, gross (%) 24.7 224
Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billion) 4.3 4.2 4.4 2 2)

Invested assets (CHF billion) 693 714 695 (3) 0

Client assets (CHF billion) 742 768 735 (3) 1

Personnel (full-time equivalents) 16,341 16,667 18,774 2) (13)

Biramsial advisors, (il fima sevaianiay T A — g Gy (g ————

1 Financial advisor compensation consists of grid-based compensation based directly on compensable revenues generated by financial advisors, and supplemental compensation calculated based on
financial advisor productivity, firm tenure, assets and other variables. 2 Amortization of financial advisor recruiting costs reflects advances related to recruiting financial advisors. 2 For the definitions
of our key performance indicators, refer to the “Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009. “Not meaningful if either the current period or the
comparison period is a loss period. 5 Excludes interest and dividend income. ¢ Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework.
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Wealth Management Americas

Business division reporting (continued)

As of or for the quarter ended

% change from Year-to-date

CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Additional information (only Wealth Management US)

Net new money (CHF billion)? (2.9) (6.4) (5.8) (9.3) 10.9
Net new money including interest and dividend

income (CHF billion)2 1.7 (2.1) (0.8) (0.5) 21.0
Business division reporting excluding PaineWebber acquisition costs3

Business division performance beforetax  ~  (36) A2 (186) o 8 6 (192).
Cost / income ratio (%) 102.3 97.0 113.4 99.8 106.9
Average attributed equity (CHF billion)#4 4.5 4.5 5.3 0 (15)

1 Excludes interest and dividend income. 2 For purposes of comparison with US peers. 3 Acquisition costs represent goodwill and intangible assets funding costs and intangible asset amortization
costs related to UBS’s 2000 acquisition of the PaineWebber retail brokerage business. * Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution

framework.

Results: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Operating income
Total operating income increased 9%, or CHF 123 million, to CHF
1,485 million.

Recurring income increased 12% due to higher managed account
fees and increased non-proprietary mutual fund fees. Recurring fee
income based on assets improved despite market weakness as
billings are based on the previous quarter’s closing asset levels. Net
interest income also improved due to higher investment portfolio
income in UBS Bank USA. Recurring income was 63% of total
operating income, up from 62%. Non-recurring income increased 5%
on stronger transactional revenue and gains of CHF 7 million relating
to the demutualization of the Chicago Board Options Exchange
(CBOE).

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses increased 15% to CHF 1,552 million from
CHF 1,347 million. The second quarter included restructuring
charges of CHF 146 million related to real estate write-downs and
personnel reductions. This compares with CHF 21 million in
restructuring charges related to personnel reductions in the first
quarter.

Personnel expenses increased 5% to CHF 1,123 million from CHF
1,069 million. Of the abovementioned restructuring charges, CHF 19
million related to personnel reductions were included in the second
quarter, compared with CHF 21 million in the first quarter. Financial
advisor compensation increased 7% as a result of higher revenue
generation. Amortization of financial advisor recruiting costs
increased 7%, but would have increased 3% excluding currency
translation impact. Compensation advance balances related to
recruiting financial advisors stood at CHF 3,578 million at the end of
the quarter. Other personnel costs increased 2% due to higher
incentive compensation as the first quarter included credits related to
an over accrual in the prior year. This increase was partly offset by
lower salary and benefits costs as a result of cost-cutting initiatives.
Non-personnel expenses were
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CHF 429 million, up 54% mainly due to the inclusion of CHF 127
million in restructuring charges related to real estate impacting
general and administrative costs as well as depreciation expenses. In
addition, expenses related to legal provisions increased.

Invested assets development: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Net new money
Net new money outflows were CHF 2.6 billion compared with CHF
7.2 billion.

The Wealth Management US business net new money outflows
were CHF 2.9 billion compared with CHF 6.4 billion. Financial advisor
retention initiatives resulted in lower outflows related to financial
advisor attrition, while net new money inflows from financial advisors
employed with UBS for more than one year declined slightly from the
prior quarter, but remained positive for the second consecutive
quarter.

Including interest and dividend income, the Wealth Management
US business had net new money inflows of CHF 1.7 billion compared
with outflows of CHF 2.1 billion in the prior quarter. This marks the
first quarter of net inflows on this basis since first quarter 2009.
Including interest and dividends for Wealth Management US only,
Wealth Management Americas had net new money inflows of CHF
2.0 billion in the second quarter.

Invested assets

Invested assets decreased 3%, or CHF 21 billion, to CHF 693 billion
on 30 June 2010, primarily due to negative market performance. In
US dollar terms, invested assets declined 6%.

Gross margin on invested assets

The gross margin on invested assets increased 6 basis points to 84
basis points due to a 9% growth in income, while average invested
assets were essentially unchanged. The recurring income margin
improved 5 basis points to 53 basis points, corresponding to a 12%
growth in recurring income as a significant portion of recurring
income is based on higher invested asset



levels from the previous quarter. The non-recurring income margin
increased 1 basis point to 31 basis points due to higher transactional
revenues and the abovementioned gains relating to the CBOE
demutualization.

Personnel: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Wealth Management Americas employed 16,341 personnel as of 30
June 2010, down 326, or 2%, from 31 March 2010. The number of
financial advisors decreased by 107, or 2%, to 6,760 as a result of
voluntary departures, which were not completely offset by financial
advisor recruiting. The number of non-financial-advisor employees
decreased by 2% or 219 to 9,581, principally due to staff reductions
related to restructuring initiatives.

Results: 6M10 vs 6MO09

Wealth Management Americas reported a pre-tax loss of CHF 52
million compared with a pre-tax loss of CHF 256 million. The first half
of 2010 included restructuring charges of CHF 167 million, while the
first half of 2009 included restructuring charges of CHF 152 million
and net goodwill impairment charges of CHF 19 million related to the
sale of UBS Pactual. Excluding restructuring charges and the net
goodwill impairment charge, pre-tax results would have improved to
a profit of CHF 115 million from a loss of CHF 85 million.

UBS business divisions

Operating income increased 3% to CHF 2,847 million mainly due to
a 10% rise in recurring income corresponding to a 5% increase in
average invested assets. Non-recurring income decreased 8% due to
a decline in municipal trading income, partly offset by higher
commission income.

Operating expenses declined 4% to CHF 2,899 million. Personnel
costs decreased 4% to CHF 2,192 million. The first half of 2010
included restructuring charges of CHF 40 million related to personnel
reductions compared with CHF 71 million in the first half of 2009.
Non-personnel costs declined 6% to CHF 707 million. The first half of
2010 included restructuring charges of CHF 127 million related to
real estate writedowns. The first half of 2009 included restructuring
charges of CHF 81 million, primarily related to real estate writedowns
and the abovementioned net goodwill impairment charges of CHF 19
million. Excluding these charges, non-personnel expenses would
have decreased 11%, primarily due to lower general and
administrative costs reflecting cost-cutting measures. This was partly
offset by higher legal provisions and costs related to the shift of
expenses from the Corporate Center to the business divisions.

= Refer to “Note 1 Basis of accounting” in the “Financial information”
section of this report for more information on allocation of additional

Corporate Center costs to business divisions from first quarter 2010
onwards

During the quarter, Wealth Management
Americas provided an in-depth update on the
strategy which supports the business
division’s CHF 1 billion pre-tax profit target,
previously announced at our Investor Day in
2009. We outlined a number of key initiatives
to build

Pre-tax profit

Crl

=1.000

Cost / income ratio

revenues, improve financial advisor retention
and streamline the cost base. The second
phase of the cost restructuring program was
initiated during this quarter, with CHF 146
million of costs booked primarily in relation to
a reduction in the property portfolio.

Revenue /FA

CHF thaisand CH

=1300

7E1
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Invested assets / FA

We are committed to acquiring, developing
and retaining financial advisors who focus on
high net worth and ultra high net worth clients.
We will concentrate investment in the most
attractive and profitable wealth management
markets and in our largest and best-
performing branches.

Pre-tax profit / FA

CHF

S 161,000

4,517
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Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management

Global Asset Management’s pre-tax profit was CHF 117 million in second quarter 2010 compared with CHF 137 million in first quarter
2010, mainly due to lower performance fees in alternative and quantitative investments and higher amortization of prior year
compensation awards.

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Net management fees? 514 473 463 9 11 986 934
Performance fees 8 49 68 (84) (88) 57 99
Total operating income 522 521 530 0 (2) 1,043 1,033
Personnel expenses 297 279 315 6 (6) 576 546
General and administrative expenses 99 94 100 5 (1) 193 202
Services (to) / from other business divisions 4) (1) (126) (300) 97 (5) (104)
Bipraciation o Bromarty and Baummant Gy g g i
e g G g T —— o a0
Amortization of intangible assets 2 2 3 0 (33) 4 9
Total operating expenses 405 385 448 5 (10) 789 1,009
Business division performance before tax 117 137 82 (15) 43 254 24
Key performance indicators?
Pre-tax profit growth (%) a8 Gi8) N 9583 (965),
Gt inGome ratio (30) g Sag B Sl e
Information by business line
Income
Traditional investments 331 325 328 2 1 656 656
Alternative and quantitative investments 64 92 102 (30) (37) 156 182
Global real estate 70 a8 a a6 5o (AL I 87
I A UG q— g o g o e &
Fund services 54 53 55 2 2) 107 102
Total operating income 522 521 530 0 (2) 1,043 1,033
Gross margin on invested assets (bps)
Traditional investments 26 26 26 0 0 26 26
Alternative and quantitative investments 69 94 102 (27) (32) 82 90
Global realestale gy gy g g g g g
I A G Gap Jog dg T 007 fag P56
Total gross margin 36 36 36 0 0 36 36
Net new money (CHF billion)3
Traditional investments 4.5 (1.0) (15.9) 3.5 (19.0)
Alternative and quantitative investments (1.2) (2.4) (1.2) (3.6) (5.9)
Globalrealestate 01 07 00 e 08 0.1,
I A G g g G P P
Total net new money 3.4 (2.6) (17.1) 0.8 (24.9)

1 Net management fees include transaction fees, fund administration revenues (including interest and trading income from lending business and foreign exchange hedging as part of the fund services
offering), gains or losses from seed money and co-investments, funding cost and other items that are not performance fees. 2 For the definitions of our key performance indicators, refer to the
“Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009. 2 Excludes interest and dividend income.
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UBS business divisions

Business division reporting (continued)

Year-to-date
30.6.10

As of or for the quarter ended
30.6.10 31.3.10

% change from
30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09

CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.09

Invested assets (CHF billion)
Traditi i

Global real estate
Infrastructure 1 1 1 0
Total invested assets 569 590 593 (4)

Assets under administration by fund services
Assets under administration (CHF billi

Net new assets under administration (CHF billion)2 (4.0) (0.5) (13.3) (4.5) (40.3)
Gross margin on assets under administration (bps) 5 5 5 0 0 5 5
Additional information

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)3 2.5 2.5 3.0 0 (17)

Return on attributed equity (RoaE) (%) 20.3 1.6
BIS risk-weighted assets (CHF billion) 3.3 3.7 5.6 (11) (41)

Ristirn on rickawsightad assets, gross (3]~ T S B R g
Goodwill and intangible assets (GHE billion) o g g G G S
Personnel (full-time equivalents) 3,454 3,521 3,718 (2) (7)

1 This includes UBS and third-party fund assets, for which the fund services unit provides legal fund set-up and registration services, valuation, accounting and reporting and shareholder services.
2 Inflows of assets under administration from new and existing funds less outflows from existing funds or fund defection. 3 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information

about the equity attribution framework.

Results: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Operating income

Total operating income was CHF 522 million, in line with the previous
quarter. Higher transaction fees and a gain on a co-investment in
global real estate were mostly offset by much lower performance
fees in alternative and quantitative investments.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were CHF 405 million compared with CHF
385 million. Personnel expenses were CHF 297 million compared
with CHF 279 million. The increase mainly reflects higher charges
from the amortization of compensation awards related to prior year,
which more than offset lower variable compensation accruals related
to the current year. General and administrative expenses were CHF
99 million compared with CHF 94 million reflecting higher IT and
premises costs coupled with higher expense allocations from the
Corporate Center.

Invested assets development: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Net new money
Second quarter 2010 saw positive net new money of CHF 3.4 billion
compared with net outflows of CHF 2.6 billion in the prior quarter.

Net inflows from third parties of CHF 10.9 billion were partially
offset by net outflows of CHF 7.5 billion from clients of UBS wealth
management businesses.

Excluding money market flows, net new money inflows were CHF
6.2 billion compared with net outflows of CHF 1.6 billion in first
quarter 2010.

Invested assets

Invested assets were CHF 569 billion on 30 June 2010, a decrease
of CHF 21 billion from 31 March 2010 when they stood at CHF 590
billion. This was due to negative market movements and currency
effects, partly offset by positive net new money inflows.

Gross margin on invested assets
The total gross margin was 36 basis points, unchanged from the prior
quarter.
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Global Asset Management
Results by business line: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Traditional investments
Revenues were CHF 331 million compared with CHF 325 million.
The gross margin was 26 basis points, in line with the prior quarter.

Net new money inflows were CHF 4.5 billion compared with
outflows of CHF 1.0 billion. Excluding money market flows, net new
money was CHF 7.3 billion compared with nil net new money in the
prior quarter. Equities saw inflows of CHF 5.0 billion compared with
outflows of CHF 1.1 billion, mainly into global passive and US growth
mandates. Fixed income saw inflows of CHF 2.4 billion compared
with inflows of CHF 4.4 billion, mainly into emerging markets debt
and Korea fixed income. Multi-asset inflows were nil compared with
outflows of CHF 3.2 billion.

Invested assets were CHF 494 billion on 30 June 2010 compared
with CHF 513 billion on 31 March 2010. This was due to negative
market movements and currency effects, partly offset by net new
money inflows.

Alternative and quantitative investments

Revenues were CHF 64 million compared with CHF 92 million,
reflecting much lower performance fee income in the context of
volatile market conditions. The gross margin was 69 basis points
compared with 94 basis points in the previous quarter.

Net new money outflows decreased to CHF 1.2 billion compared
with net outflows of CHF 2.4 billion, due to outflows mainly from
multi-manager products. Invested assets were CHF 36 billion on 30
June 2010 compared with CHF 38 billion on 31 March 2010 as a
result of negative market movements and net new money outflows,
partly offset by currency effects.

Global real estate

Revenues were CHF 70 million compared with CHF 48 million due to
a gain from a co-investment and higher transaction fees. The gross
margin was 74 basis points compared with 50 basis points.
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Net new money inflows were CHF 0.1 billion compared with CHF
0.7 billion. Invested assets were unchanged at CHF 38 billion.
Positive market movements and net new money inflows were off-set
by negative currency effects.

Infrastructure
Revenues were CHF 4 million compared with CHF 3 million.

Net new money inflows were nil compared with CHF 0.1 billion.
Invested assets were CHF 1 billion, unchanged from the prior period.

Fund services

Revenues were CHF 54 million compared with CHF 53 million. The
gross margin on assets under administration was 5 basis points, in
line with the prior quarter.

Net new assets under administration outflows were CHF 4.0 billion
compared with CHF 0.5 billion, driven by outflows of CHF 6.5 billion
from UBS funds, partly offset by inflows of CHF 2.5 billion into third
party funds. Total assets under administration were CHF 399 billion
compared with CHF 413 billion. This was due to negative market
movements, net new assets under administration outflows and
currency effects.

Personnel: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

The number of personnel on 30 June 2010 was 3,454, a 2%
decrease from 3,521 on 31 March 2010, mainly in traditional
investments.

Results: 6M10 vs 6M09

Pre-tax profit was CHF 254 million compared with CHF 24 million,
reflecting a net CHF 191 million goodwill impairment charge in the
first half of 2009 related to the sale of UBS Pactual. Excluding this
charge, pre-tax profit for the first half of 2010 would have increased
by CHF 39 million from first half 2009. Total operating income was
CHF 1,043 million compared



with CHF 1,033 million. Lower performance fees and the loss of
revenues after the sale of UBS Pactual were more than offset by
lower co-investment losses and higher real estate transaction fees.
Traditional investments revenues were CHF 656 million, in line with
the first six months of 2009, as higher net management fees and
lower operational losses were offset by lower revenues after the sale
of UBS Pactual. Alternative and quantitative investments revenues
were CHF 156 million compared with CHF 182 million due to lower
performance fees. Global real estate revenues were CHF 118 million
compared with CHF 87 million, mainly due to lower co-investment
losses and higher transaction fees. Infrastructure revenues were
CHF 7 million

Investment performance — key composites

UBS business divisions

compared with CHF 6 million. Fund services revenues were CHF 107
million compared with CHF 102 million.

Total operating expenses were CHF 789 million compared with
CHF 1,009 million. Excluding the abovementioned goodwill
impairment charge in first half 2009, operating expenses would have
decreased by CHF 29 million. This reflects benefits from cost-cutting
measures that were partially offset by additional cost allocations from
the Corporate Center.

= Refer to “Note 1 Basis of accounting” in the “Financial information”
section of this report for more information on allocation of additional

Corporate Center costs to business divisions from first quarter 2010
onwards

The table below represents 26% of Global Asset Management’s CHF 315 billion actively managed traditional investments invested assets on 30
June 2010. This figure excludes CHF 109 billion in money market funds, CHF 62 billion in passively managed investments and CHF 83 billion in
alternative and quantitative investments, global real estate and infrastructure.

Annualized

3 months 1 year 3 years 5 years
Australian Equity Composite vs. S&P / ASX 300 Accumulation Index - + + +
Canadian Equity Composite vs. TSE Total Return Index - - + +
Emorging Edity Gomposite va. Emerging Markets Bquity fndex e s o
Global Equity Composite vs. MSCI World Equity (Free) Index - + + +
Pan European Composite vs. MSCI Europe Free Index + + + +
Swiss Equity Gomposita ve. SPT (Total Bturm) Index e e L o
US Large Gap Equity Gomposits ve. Russall 1000 ndisx e — s
Global Equity Ex-US Growth Composite vs. MSCI EAFE (Free) Index - - - +
US Large Cap Select Growth Equity Composite vs. Russell 1000 Growth Index - + + +
EUR Aggregate Bonds Gomposits v, Bardiays Gaital Euro Agaregate 500mio index e s s o
Global Bond Composite vs. Citigroup World Government Bond Index - + + -
Global Securities Composite vs. Global Securities Markets Index - + - -

(+) above benchmark; (=) under benchmark; (=) equal to benchmark. All are before the deduction of investment management fees. Global composites are stated in USD
terms; all others are in appropriate local currencies (unless otherwise stated). A composite is an aggregation of one or more portfolios in a single group that is representative
of a particular strategy, style, or objective. The composite is the asset-weighted average of the performance results of all the portfolios it holds. Global Asset Management
has been verified as compliant with the Global Investment Performance Standards by Ernst & Young on a firm-wide basis to 31 December 2008.
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Investment Bank

Investment Bank

The pre-tax profit was CHF 1,314 million in second quarter 2010 compared with CHF 1,190 million in first quarter 2010. The significant
gain on own credit, compared with an own credit loss in the prior quarter, more than offset lower business revenues, particularly in
the fixed income, currencies and commodities business.

Business division reporting

As of or for the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Investment banking 604 717 (21) (33)

Equities
Fixed income, currencies and commodities

Other fee income and risk management

Securities
Equities

Credit loss (expense) / recovery!
Total operating income excluding own credit
Own credit?

Total operating income as reported
Personnel expenses

Gomaral Sl st ative S i L
Services (to) / from other business divisions
Depreciation of property and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Total operating expenses 2,378 3 17 5,487 4,879
Business division performance before tax (1,846) 10 2,504 (5,008)
Key performance indicators3

Pre-tax profit growth (%)4 10.4 300.7 N/A N/A N/A
T T G e (S T S g g o 84
Return on attributed equity (RoaE) (%) 20.9 (37.8)
Return on assets, gross (%) 1.6 0.2
Average VaR (1-day, 95% confidence, 5 years of historical data) 48 52 57 (8) (16)

1 Includes impairment charges of reclassified securities of CHF 56 million (2Q10) and CHF 29 million (1Q10). 2 Represents own credit changes on financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss. The cumulative own credit gain for such debt held at 30 June 2010 amounts to CHF 1.2 billion. This gain has reduced the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss recognized on our balance sheet. Refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial information” section of this report for more information. 3 For the definitions of our
key performance indicators, refer to the “Measurement and analysis of performance” section on page 33 of our Annual Report 2009. * Not meaningful if either the current period or the comparison
period is a loss period.
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Business division reporting (continued)

UBS business divisions

As of or for the quarter ended

% change from Year-to-date

CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Additional information

Total assets (CHF billion)? 1,078.2 990.1 1,258.9 9 (14)

Average attributed equity (CHF billion)2 24.0 24.0 25.0 0 (4)

BIS Tiek weighion saata (GHE Bilion) Sapg o el i Ra— gy
Return on risk-weighted assets, gross (%) 12.8 1.4
Goodwill and intangible assets (CHF billion) 3.6 3.6 3.7 0 3)

Compensation ratio (%) 48.3 52.8 1711 50.4 221.3
Impaired lending portfolio as a % of total lending portfolio, gross 2.8 3.3 4.3

Personnel (full-time equivalents) 16,552 16,373 16,922 1 (2)

1 Based on third-party view, i.e. without intercompany balances. 2 Refer to the “Capital management” section of this report for more information about the equity attribution framework.

Results: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

Operating income

Total operating income was CHF 4,101 million compared with CHF
3,889 million. The gain from own credit on financial liabilities
designated at fair value and increased revenues from the equities
business were partly offset by lower revenues in fixed income,
currencies and commaodities (FICC) and investment banking.

Credit loss expense / recovery

Net credit loss expense was CHF 39 million, compared with a net
credit recovery of CHF 112 million. This was primarily due to credit
losses on student loan auction rate securities that were partially
offset by recoveries on certain legacy leveraged finance positions.

= Refer to the “Risk management” section of this report for more
information on credit risk

Own credit

The own credit gain on financial liabilities designated at fair value
was CHF 595 million. In the prior quarter, we recorded an own credit
loss of CHF 247 million. The gain was primarily due to a widening of
our credit spreads over the quarter.

= Refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information on own credit

Operating income by business segment

Investment banking
Total revenues decreased 21% in the second quarter to CHF 478
million compared with CHF 604 million in the previous quarter.

Advisory revenues were CHF 153 million, down 26% from the first
quarter, which included fee income from the completion of two
significant transactions.

Capital markets revenues were down 16% to CHF 400 million as
market volatility reduced transaction volumes, leading to a 21%
decrease in equity capital markets revenues and a 9% decrease in
fixed income capital markets revenues.

Other fee income and risk management revenues were negative
CHF 75 million compared with negative CHF 78 million.

Securities

Securities revenues of CHF 3,068 million were down 10% compared
with CHF 3,420 million, as adverse market conditions impacted our
FICC business.

Equities
Equities revenues increased 9% to CHF 1,365 million from CHF
1,255 million.

Cash revenues of CHF 482 million were in line with the first quarter
with commission income consistent despite volatile markets.

Derivatives and equity-linked revenues were CHF 497 million
compared with CHF 491 million. Derivatives revenues increased
despite the volatile trading conditions and reduced liquidity, partly as
a result of effective risk management. Equity-linked revenues fell as
a result of the difficult environment and lack of primary activity.

Within the prime services business, comprising prime brokerage
and exchange-traded derivatives, revenues increased to CHF 296
million from CHF 231 million. Increases in prime brokerage were due
to a strong quarterly result in securities financing. Exchange-traded
derivatives revenue increases were primarily due to the impact of
higher commissions revenues in conjunction with an increase in
volumes.

Other equities revenues, including proprietary trading, were CHF
89 million compared with CHF 49 million. Equities revenues included
a gain of CHF 61 million related to the demutualization of the
Chicago Board Options Exchange, of which CHF 47 million was
recognized in other equities revenues.

Fixed income, currencies and commodities
FICC revenues were CHF 1,703 million compared with CHF 2,165
million, as global market conditions deteriorated, triggered by the
eurozone crisis and increased economic concern.

In credit, revenues were CHF 464 million, down from a first quarter
result of CHF 744 million. Overall de-risking and de-
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Investment Bank

creased liquidity led to a decline in flow trading across the regions,
especially in the US where liquidity and trading volumes suffered as
the high yield market re-priced. Structured credit posted solid results
with a number of client-driven restructuring transactions executed,
though revenues were lower than the previous quarter.

In macro, revenues were CHF 664 million compared with CHF 922
million. The return of high market volatility drove revenues in the
foreign exchange business, however, this was more than offset by
lower interest rate trading and structured revenues due to decreased
client activity and general de-risking in the market.

Emerging markets revenues declined to CHF 73 million from CHF
241 million. All regions were negatively affected, particularly Europe,
where ongoing concerns about the impact of sovereign debt and the
European Union response caused increased volatility and risk
aversion.

Other FICC revenues were CHF 502 million compared with CHF
258 million. Second quarter revenues included CHF 0.3 billion of
positive debit valuation adjustments on the derivatives portfolio
resulting from the widening of our credit default swap spreads.
Residual risk positions also contributed CHF 0.2 billion in positive
revenues during the quarter, partially due to the sale of some auction
rate securities.

Operating expenses
Total operating expenses were CHF 2,788 million compared with
CHF 2,699 million.

Personnel expenses were CHF 2,000 million compared with CHF
1,993 million. Second quarter 2010 included a CHF 228 million
charge for the UK BPT. This was partially offset by other re-
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ductions in compensation expenses and a CHF 25 million release of
restructuring provisions.

General and administrative expenses increased 15% to CHF 691
million across most cost categories.

Personnel: 2Q10 vs 1Q10

The Investment Bank employed 16,552 personnel on 30 June 2010,
a 1% increase from 16,373 on 31 March 2010.

Results: 6M10 vs 6M09
The pre-tax profit was positive CHF 2,504 million compared with
negative CHF 5,008 million. The change was mainly due to the
losses on residual risk positions recorded in 2009. Total operating
income was CHF 7,990 million compared with negative CHF 129
million. This was due to increased revenues in fixed income,
currencies and commodities, a net credit loss recovery and own
credit gain on financial liabilities designated at fair value in the first
six months of 2010, compared with credit loss expense and an own
credit loss in the first six months of 2009. Total operating expenses
increased 12% to CHF 5,487 million from CHF 4,879 million mainly
due to an increase in personnel expenses. First half 2010 operating
expenses included increased variable compensation accruals in line
with performance and additional cost allocations from the Corporate
Center. The first half of 2009 included a net goodwill impairment
charge of CHF 421 million related to the sale of UBS Pactual.

= Refer to “Note 1 Basis of accounting” in the “Financial information”

section of this report for more information on allocation of additional

Corporate Center costs to business divisions from first quarter 2010
onwards
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Risk management and control

Risk management and control

In light of volatile markets, we adopted a more cautious approach to risk-taking during the quarter, particularly in the Investment
Bank, as our average trading risk decreased and we also achieved further significant reductions in our residual risk positions.

Specifically, the reductions in our residual risk positions included the
following:

Our gross impaired lending portfolio decreased significantly,
primarily due to the sale of a legacy restructured leveraged
finance position by the Investment Bank without incurring any
meaningful incremental costs to the firm.

As a result of redemptions by issuers and sales in the secondary
market, we significantly reduced both our commitment to
repurchase and inventory of student loan auction rate securities.

Allowances and provisions for credit losses

— We commuted several trades with a monoline insurer resulting in

a reduction in our net exposure to monoline insurers after credit
valuation adjustments. Based on fair values, only 2% of our
remaining portfolio of assets hedged with monoline insurers
related to US residential mortgage-backed securities collateralized
debt obligations.

Our risk management and control framework is described in the “Risk
and treasury management” section of our Annual Report

CHF million Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
Wealth Management Retail & Corporate Total

As of 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10
Due from banks 497 402 2,585 2,164 3,082 2,566
O e 66,126 .. 63,874 .. 135471 .. 185225  ...201,597 ... 199099 ..
i S S R S F R S
Total lending portfolio, gross3 66,623 64,275 138,056 137,389 204,679 201,665
Allowances for credit10Sses aet) .....(163) .. (T78). .. ©24) ......(936) .. (986) ..
A
Total lending portfolio, net4 66,462 64,113 137,281 136,566 203,743 200,679
Impaired lending portfolio, gross® 257 256 ..1809 1452 1,566 1,708 o
T S S S S SR
Estimated liquidation proceeds of collateral for impaired loans (116) (119) (382) (385) (498) (504)

of which: related to reclassified securities
Impaired lending portfolio, net of collateral 141 137 927 1,067 1,068 1,204
Allocated allowances for impaired lending portfolio 158 157 731 780 888 938
Other allowances and provisions 3 5 44 43 47 48
Total allowances and provisions for credit losses
in lending portfolio 161 163 775 824 936 986
Allowances and provisions for credit losses outside
of lending portfolio 2 0 14 17 16 17
Ratios
Allowances and provisions as a % of total lending portfolio, gross 0.2 0.3 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5
Impaired lending portfolio as a % of total lending portfolio, gross 0.4 0.4 0.9 1.1 0.8 0.8
Impaired lending portfolio excluding reclassified securities as a % of
total lending portfolio, gross excluding reclassified securities
Allocated allowances as a % of impaired lending portfolio, gross 61.5 61.3 55.8 53.7 56.7 54.9
Allocated allowances as a % of impaired lending portfolio, net of
collateral 112.1 114.6 78.9 73.1 83.1 77.9

1 Includes Global Asset Management, Treasury activities and other corporate items. 2 Includes acquired auction rate securities of CHF 8.6 billion (31.3.10: CHF 7.9 billion) repurchased from clients.
3 Excludes loans designated at fair value, but includes margin accounts for exchange-traded derivatives transactions, cash collateral delivered for OTC derivatives and cash current accounts from
prime brokerage (cash leg) of total CHF 64,586 million (of which due from banks: CHF 32,338 million, of which loans: CHF 32,247 million) (31.3.10: CHF 66,859 million of which due from banks: CHF

27,642 million, of which loans: CHF 39,217 million). Also includes reclassified auction rate securities of total CHF 5.6 billion (31.3.10: CHF 7.3 billion).

4 Reconciles to the balance sheet carrying

values of Due from banks and Loans, which are reported net of allowances for credit losses. 5 Excludes reclassified securities with adverse cash flow estimate revisions cumulatively below 5% of the
carrying value at reclassification date, adjusted for redemptions.
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2009, including details on how we define, measure and manage
credit, market and operational risks as well as risk concentrations.

Credit risk

The tables in this section provide an update on our credit risk
exposures on 30 June 2010, including details of our allowances and
provisions for credit losses and the composition and credit quality of
our key lending portfolios in the Wealth Management & Swiss Bank
and Investment Bank business divisions.

= Refer to the “Group results” section of this report for more information
on credit loss expense / recovery in second quarter 2010

Gross lending portfolio and impairments

The credit risk exposures reported in the table below represent the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) balance sheet
view of our gross lending portfolio. This comprises the balance

Risk and treasury management

sheet line items Due from banks and Loans. The table also shows
the IFRS reported allowances for credit losses and impairments as
well as UBS’s impaired lending portfolio. Our gross lending portfolio
was CHF 348 billion on 30 June 2010, down slightly from CHF 354
billion on 31 March 2010.

Our gross impaired lending portfolio was CHF 4,901 million at the
end of second quarter 2010 compared with CHF 5,876 million at the
prior quarter-end. The ratio of the impaired lending portfolio to total
gross lending portfolio improved to 1.4% on 30 June 2010 from 1.7%
on 31 March 2010. Excluding reclassified securities, the ratio
decreased to 1.1% at the end of second quarter 2010 from 1.4% at
the end of first quarter 2010.

The total gross lending portfolio in the Investment Bank was CHF
118 billion at 30 June 2010, down from CHF 128 billion on 31 March
2010. The Investment Bank held in its lending portfolio CHF 6.0
billion at net carrying value of assets on which protection was
purchased from monoline insurers (CHF 6.3 billion at 31 March 2010)
and CHF 1.3 billion at net carrying value of US

Wealth Management Americas Investment Bank Others? UBS

30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10
....................................................... 1,386 o 114D AR08 INB06 300 BB ATBSY D845

23,914 22,641 74,577 86,004 190 142 300,279 307,886

14,882 17,804 14,882 17,804

25,300 23,786 117,661 127,610 490 469 348,130 353,530

(4) (4) (400) (999) 0 0 (1,340) (1,990)

211) (183) (211) (183)

25,295 23,782 117,261 126,611 490 469 346,790 351,541

1 4 3,334 4,164 0 0 4,901 5,876

1,293 1,332 1,293 1,332
S . (.881) (89N R O (1.879) ... (1,895)

(1,121) (1,181) (1,121) (1,181)

1 4 1,953 2,773 0 0 3,022 3,981
................................................................. A ..., KO-+ S S, S <AL S

0 0 0 0 0 0 47 48

4 4 400 999 0 0 1,340 1,990

0 0 118 115 5 5 138 138

0.0 0.0 0.3 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.6

0.0 0.0 2.8 3.3 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.7

2.0 2.6 1.1 1.4

400.0 100.0 12.0 24.0 0.0 0.0 26.4 33.0

400.0 100.0 20.5 36.0 0.0 0.0 42.8 48.8
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Risk management and control

commercial real estate positions (CHF 2.1 billion at 31 March 2010).
These assets were reclassified to Loans and receivables from Held
for trading in fourth quarter 2008. The reduction in our exposures to
these assets in second quarter 2010 resulted from sales in the
period.

2 Refer to “Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets” in the “Financial

information” section of this report for more information on reclassified
securities

= Refer to the “Risk concentration” section of this report for more
information on our exposures to monoline insurers

The Investment Bank’s gross impaired lending portfolio decreased by
approximately 20% to CHF 3,334 million on 30 June 2010 compared
with CHF 4,164 million on 31 March 2010, due primarily to the sale of
a legacy restructured leveraged finance position.

In Wealth Management & Swiss Bank, the gross lending portfolio
was CHF 205 billion on 30 June 2010, compared with CHF 202
billion on 31 March 2010. The gross impaired lending portfolio
decreased to CHF 1,566 million on 30 June 2010 compared with
CHF 1,708 million on 31 March 2010.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank — lending portfolio

The table on the next page shows the composition of the lending
portfolio for Wealth Management & Swiss Bank as shown in the
“Allowances and provisions for credit losses” table, including both
Due from banks and Loans.

Overall, the composition of Wealth Management & Swiss Bank’s
lending portfolio remained stable over the quarter. On 30 June 2010,
over 90% of the portfolio was secured by collateral. Aimost half of the
unsecured loan portfolio was rated investment grade and
approximately 60% related to cash flow-based lending to corporate
counterparties. In addition, over 20% of our unsecured loans related
to lending to central or local governments.

Investment Bank — banking products

The tables on the next page show the composition and credit quality
of the Investment Bank’s banking products portfolio based on our
internal management view of credit risk.
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The first table provides a bridge from the total banking products
portfolio (loans, contingent claims and undrawn irrevocable credit
facilities) according to IFRS to the internal management view of
banking products exposure to corporates and other non-banks, gross
and net of credit hedges. The second table provides a breakdown of
the rating and loss given default profile of this portfolio, with
additional detail provided on the sub-investment grade component.

The net banking products exposure after credit hedges decreased
slightly to CHF 43.1 billion at the end of second quarter 2010 from
CHF 43.8 billion at the end of first quarter 2010. Approximately 65%
of the net banking products exposures after the application of credit
hedges are classified as investment grade. The vast majority of sub-
investment grade exposures have a loss given default of 0-50%.

Loss given default is determined based on our estimation of the
likely recovery rate of any defaulted claims. Recovery rates are
dependent upon the characteristics of the counterparty in addition to
any credit mitigation such as collateral held.

Included in the Investment Bank’s total net banking products
exposure to corporates and other non-banks is our loan to the RMBS
Opportunities Master Fund, LP, a special purpose entity managed by
BlackRock Financial Management, Inc. As of 30 June 2010, the loan
had an outstanding balance of USD 6.3 billion (USD 6.7 billion on 31
March 2010) taking into account amounts held in escrow. The
aggregate notional balance of the RMBS fund’s assets collateralizing
the loan on 30 June 2010 was USD 14.5 billion. By notional balance,
this portfolio was comprised primarily of Alt-A (53%) and sub-prime
(32%) credit grades. In terms of priority, the portfolio was dominated
by senior positions (94%).

We closely monitor the RMBS fund and its performance,
particularly to determine if deterioration of the underlying RMBS
mortgage pools indicates that the equity investors in the fund no
longer receive the majority of the risks and rewards and also to
assess whether the loan to the RMBS fund has been impaired.
Developments through second quarter 2010 have not altered our
conclusion that the loan is not impaired and that consolidation is not
required.

= Refer to the “Risk and treasury management” section of our Annual

Report 2009 for more information on our loan to the RMBS
Opportunities Master Fund, LP



Risk and treasury management

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank: composition of lending portfolio, gross

CHF million 30.6.10
SecUred by residential PrOD Oty e 122,735  ....080.0% ..122504 @ 60.7%
Secured by commercial / industrial property 10.3%

Secured by securities

Unsecured loans 15,218 7.4% 15,302 7.6%
Total lending portfolio, gross 204,679 100.0% 201,665 100.0%
Total lending portfolio, net of allowances and credit hedges 203,561 200,574

Investment Bank: net banking products exposure to corporates and other non-banks

CHF million 30.6.10

Loans 74,577

Total (IFRS view) 134,189
less: internal risk adjustments margin accounts, cash collateral posted, other! (30,710) (35,557)
less: internal risk adjustments reclassified securities? (14,882) (17,804)

less: internal risk adjustments acquired auction rate securities (8,668) (7,943)
less: internal risk adjustments traded loan commitments and funded risk participations (952) (1,841)
Gross banking products exposure 78,978 80,498
less: specific allowances for credit losses and loan loss provisions3 (211) (845)
Net banking products exposure 78,767 79,653
less: credit protection bought (credit default swaps) (35,653) (35,847)
Net banking products exposure to corporates and other non-banks, after application of credit hedges 43,114 43,806

1 Includes margin accounts for exchange-traded derivatives transactions, cash collateral posted by UBS against negative replacement values for OTC derivatives, cash/current accounts from prime
brokerage (cash legs) and valuation differences caused by a different exposure treatment in Risk Control than in IFRS. 2 Includes reclassified auction rate securities in the amount of CHF 5.8 billion
(31.3.10: CHF 7.5 billion). 3 Does not include allowances for reclassified securities, and includes provisions for contingent claims and undrawn irrevocable credit facilities.

Investment Bank: distribution of net banking products exposure to corporate and other non-banks, across UBS internal rating and
loss given default buckets

CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10
Moody's Loss given default (LGD) buckets
Investors  Standard & Weighted Weighted
Services Poor's average average LGD
UBS internal rating equivalent  equivalent Exposure  0-25% 26-50% 51-75% 76-100% LGD (%) Exposure (%)
Investment grade Aaa-Baa3 AAA-BBB- 28,185 9,316 12,126 3,251 3,492 40 27,848 39
Sub-investment grade 14,929 7,269 5,238 1,789 632 33 15,958 33
of which: 6 Bat BB+ 1,534 16 1,132 269 116 50 1,554 49
of which: 7 Baz BB 2,238 1,214 470 326 228 34 2,147 32
of which: 8 Baz BB 1,161 362 583 196 20 40 1,232 37
of which: 9 Ba3 BB- 2,272 1,046 854 290 81 35 1,988 36
Cofwhich: 107 Ty e ey e e e T s i g
1 e P — Fgee G g e Saze 31
of which: 12 B3 B- 2,030 1,263 438 288 41 26 1,678 18
LOfWhich: 18 o CaatoC  CCCtoC . 336 ... 21T e A5 e S6 e 25 29, D27 27
e S e L [ or iz G g g Go Tess 4
Net banking products exposure to corporates and
other non-banks, after application of credit hedges 43,114 16,586 17,364 5,040 4,124 38 43,806 37




Risk management and control
Market risk

Most of our market risk comes from the Investment Bank’s trading
activities. Group Treasury assumes foreign exchange and interest
rate risk in connection with its balance sheet, profit and loss and
capital management responsibilities. Our wealth and asset
management operations also take limited market risk in support of
client business.

Value at Risk

Value at Risk (VaR) is a statistical measure of market risk,
representing the market risk losses that could potentially be realized
over a set time horizon at an established level of confidence. This
assumes no change in the firm’s trading positions over the relevant
time period.

Actual realized market risk losses may differ from those implied by
our VaR for a variety of reasons. For example, the historical period
used in creating our VaR measure may include fluctuations in market
rates and prices that differ from those in the future; our VaR measure
is calibrated to a specified level of confidence and may not indicate
potential losses beyond this confidence level; and the impact on
revenue of a market move may differ from that assumed by our VaR
model. All VaR measures are subject to limitations and must be
interpreted accordingly.

As a complement to VaR, we run macro stress scenarios bringing
together various combinations of macro-economic and market moves
to reflect the most common types of potential stress
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events, and more targeted stress tests for concentrated exposures
and vulnerable portfolios.

The tables on the next page show our 1-day 95% management
VaR for UBS Group and the Investment Bank. The Investment
Bank’s average management VaR in second quarter 2010 decreased
to CHF 48 million compared with CHF 52 million in first quarter 2010,
as we adopted a more cautious approach to risk-taking in the period
in light of volatile markets. Period-end VaR was higher at CHF 46
million on 30 June 2010 compared with CHF 43 million on 31 March
2010. Credit spread risk continued to be the dominant component of
our VaR.

VaR for UBS Group as a whole followed a similar pattern to
Investment Bank VaR.

Backtesting

Backtesting compares 1-day 99% regulatory VaR calculated on
positions at the close of each business day, with the revenues arising
on those positions on the following business day. Backtesting
revenues exclude non-trading revenues, such as fees and
commissions, and estimated revenues from intraday trading. A
backtesting exception occurs when backtesting revenues are
negative and the absolute value of those revenues is greater than the
previous day’s VaR.

We experienced one backtesting exception in the second quarter in
May 2010, due to extreme market moves which followed the
announcement of the European Central Bank’s financial aid package
for certain European countries. We did not have any backtesting
exceptions in first quarter 2010 and this was our first backtesting
exception since second quarter 2009.



Risk and treasury management

UBS: Value-at-Risk (1-day, 95% confidence, 5 years of historical data)
For the quarter ended 30.6.10 For the quarter ended 31.3.10
CHF million Min. Max. Average 30.6.10 Min. Max. Average 31.3.10
Business divisions
Investment Bank

Wealth Management Americas 2
Global Asset Management 0
Treasury activities and other corporate items 5
Bivaraiicaton ahtadt L i
Total management VaR2 3 43

Diversification effect (%) (16) (17) (13) (14)

1 As the minimum and maximum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not meaningful to calculate a portfolio diversification effect. 2 Includes all positions subject to internal management
VaR limits. 3 Sensitivity information for certain significant instrument categories that are excluded from Management VaR is disclosed in “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments”.

Investment Bank: Value-at-Risk (1-day, 95% confidence, 5 years of historical data)

For the quarter ended 30.6.10 For the quarter ended 31.3.10
CHF million Min. Max. Average 30.6.10 Min. Max. Average 31.3.10
Risk type
Equities 13 29 20 19 23 17

Interest rates 20 25 19

Foreign exchange 7 6 6

Energy, metals & commodities 2 3 2 2 2 2 2
Diversification effect 1 1 (50) (52) 1 1 (43) (47)
Total management VaR2 3 43 54 48 46 42 61 52 43
Diversification effect (%) (51) (53) (45) (52)

1 As the minimum and maximum occur on different days for different risk types, it is not meaningful to calculate a portfolio diversification effect. 2 Includes all positions subject to internal management
VaR limits. 3 Sensitivity information for certain significant instrument categories that are excluded from Management VaR is disclosed in “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments”.
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Risk management and control
Risk concentrations

Based on our assessment of our portfolios and asset classes with
potential for material loss in a stress scenario we consider most
relevant to the current environment, we believe that our exposures to
monoline insurers and student loan auction rate securities as shown
below can be considered as risk concentrations.

It is possible that material losses could occur on asset classes,
positions and hedges other than those disclosed in this section of the
report, particularly if the correlations that emerge in a stressed
environment differ markedly from those we anticipated. We are
exposed to price risk, basis risk, credit spread risk and default risk,
and other idiosyncratic and correlation risks on both equities and
fixed income inventories. We also have price risk on our option to
acquire the SNB StabFund’s equity.

= Refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial

information” section of this report for more information

In addition, we have lending, counterparty and country risk
exposures that could sustain significant losses if economic conditions
were to worsen.

= Refer to the discussion of market risk and credit risk above and the

“Risk and treasury management” section of our Annual Report 2009
for more information on the risks to which we are exposed

Exposure to monoline insurers
The vast majority of our direct exposures to monoline insurers arise
from over-the-counter derivative contracts, mainly credit

Exposure to monoline insurers, by rating’

default swaps (CDSs) purchased to hedge specific positions. The
table below shows the CDS protection bought from monoline insurers
to hedge specific positions.

Exposure under CDS contracts to monoline insurers is calculated
as the sum of the fair values of individual CDSs after credit valuation
adjustments (CVA). Changes in CVA are driven by changes in CDS
fair value (which is in turn driven by changes in the fair value of the
instruments against which protection has been bought) and also by
movements in monoline credit spreads.

= Refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial

information” section of this report for more information on CVA
valuation and sensitivities

In second quarter 2010, we further reduced our risk exposures by
commuting certain trades with a monoline insurer. The exposures
reported in the table below fully incorporate the impact of these trade
commutations, which related to US residential mortgage-backed
securities (RMBS) CDOs that had been substantially written down on
a fair value basis. On 30 June 2010, based on fair values,
approximately 73% of the remaining assets included in the table
below were collateralized loan obligations (CLOs), 25% were
collateralized mortgage-backed securities and other asset backed
security collateralized debt obligations (CDOs), and only 2% related
to US RMBS CDOs. The vast majority of the CLO positions were
rated AA and above.

On 30 June 2010, the total fair value of CDS protection purchased
from monoline insurers was USD 1.7 billion after cumulative CVAs of
USD 1.6 billion. The change in the CVA reported in the table below
does not equal the profit or loss associated with this portfolio in
second quarter 2010 as a result of the trade com-

USD million

30.6.10

Fair value of CDSs
after credit

Fair value of CDSs
prior to credit Credit valuation

Fair value of valuation adjustment as of valuation
Notional amount3 underlying assets adjustment4 30.6.10 adjustment
Column 1 Column2  Column 3 (=1-2) Column 4  Column 5 (=3-4)
Credit protection on US sub-prime residential mortgage-backed
securities (RMBS) CDOs high grade, from monolines rated sub-
investment grade (BB and below)? 762 169 592 431 161
Credit protection on other assets? 11,204 8,5195 2,685 1,152 1,532
of which: from monolines rated investment grade (BBB and above) 2,325 1,929 396 90 306
o i (BB Al bl ™™™ g Gaag Sagg T 556"
Total 30.6.10 11,966 8,688 3,277 1,583 1,693
Total 31.3.10 13,930 9,224 4,706 2,476 2,230

1 Excludes the benefit of credit protection purchased from unrelated third parties. 2 Categorization based on the lowest insurance financial strength rating assigned by external rating agencies.

3 Represents gross notional amount of credit default swaps (CDSs) purchased as credit protection.

4 CDSs: credit default swaps. °Includes USD 5.5 billion (CHF 5.9 billion) at fair value / USD 5.6

billion (CHF 6.0 billion) at carrying value of assets that were reclassified to Loans and receivables from Held for trading in fourth quarter 2008. Refer to “Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets” in

the “Financial information” section of this report for more information.
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mutations in the period and also because a significant portion of the
underlying assets are classified as loans and receivables for
accounting purposes.

In addition to credit protection bought on the positions detailed in
the table above, UBS held direct derivative exposure to monoline
insurers of USD 270 million after CVAs of USD 210 million at 30
June 2010.

Exposure to student loan auction rate securities

We significantly reduced our exposure to student loan auction rate
securities (ARS) in second quarter 2010 as a result of redemptions
by issuers and sales by UBS in the secondary market.

The “Client holdings: student loan auction rate securities” table
shows the maximum repurchase amount at par value of student loan
ARS required by various regulatory settlements entered into by UBS,
which will occur no later than 2 July 2012.

The par value of our maximum required purchase of student loan
ARS was reduced to USD 3.2 billion on 30 June 2010 compared with
USD 6.9 billion on 31 March 2010. Approximately 92% of these
student loan ARS were backed by Federal Family Education Loan
Program (FFELP) guaranteed collateral, which is reinsured by the
US Department of Education for not less than 97% of principal and
interest. The vast majority of our purchase commitments relate to
holdings of institutional clients and the buyback window for these
clients opened on 30 June 2010. Approximately 90% of the
remaining client holdings were sold back to us in July 2010 and will
be reflected in third quarter reported exposures.

Client holdings: student loan auction rate securities

Risk and treasury management

Our commitment to acquire ARS from clients is treated as a
derivative instrument and accounted for at fair value through profit
and loss. Our determination of the fair value takes into account the
difference between the par and market values of the student loan
ARS and is based on the assumption that clients will exercise their
right to exchange eligible securities at par on the first eligible day of
the buy-back period.

= Refer to the “Risk and treasury management” section of our Annual

Report 2009 for more information on our commitment to repurchase
client ARS

Our inventory of student loan ARS decreased to USD 8.1 billion at
30 June 2010 from USD 9.3 bilion on 31 March 2010 as the
abovementioned redemptions, re-sales and amortizations more than
offset the student loan ARS repurchased from clients in the period.
As discussed above, the remaining client holdings that were sold
back to us in July 2010 will be reflected in third quarter reported
exposures.

The majority (approximately 76%) of the collateral underlying
UBS’s inventory of student loan ARS was backed by FFELP
collateral. All of our student loan ARS positions are held as Loans
and receivables and are subject to an impairment test that includes a
detailed review of the quality of the underlying collateral. Impairment
charges incurred on our inventory of student loan ARS in second
quarter 2010 were not significant in the context of the size of our
portfolio.

= Refer to the “Group results” section of this report for more information
on credit loss expense / recovery in second quarter 2010

Buy-back period

Par value of maximum

Par value of maximum

required purchase  Remaining unpurchased Holdings of required purchase
as of 30.6.10 holdings of private clients Institutional clients as of 31.3.10

USD million period ends 4.1.11 30.6.10-2.7.12
US student loan auction rate securities 3,239 27 3,212 6,907

Student loan auction rate securities inventory

USD million

Carrying value Carrying value
as of 30.6.10 as of 31.3.10

US student loan auction rate securities

8,1171 9,275

1 Includes USD 4.9 billion (CHF 5.2 billion) at carrying value of student loans auction rate securities that were reclassified to “Loans and receivables” from “Held for trading” in fourth quarter 2008. Refer
to “Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets” in the “Financial information” section of this report for more information.
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Balance sheet

Balance sheet

As of second quarter-end, our balance sheet stood at CHF 1,458 billion, up by CHF 102 billion from first quarter 2010. The second
quarter increase in balance sheet assets was due primarily to increased positive replacement values. Our funded assets, which
exclude positive replacement values, increased by CHF 16 billion on larger holdings of liquid assets (cash and balances held with

central banks).
Assets

Product category view
Replacement values (RVs) increased by similar amounts on both
sides of the balance sheet as market movements drove up positive
replacement values by 20%, or CHF 85 billion. Lending growth
resulted from a CHF 22 billion increase in liquid assets held as cash
and deposits at central banks. Collateral trading assets rose by CHF
11 billion to CHF 199 billion, partly due to a shift in the composition of
our investment portfolio from debt instruments available-for-sale and
partly to cover increased trading liability positions. These increases
were somewhat offset by a decline in trading assets on net
redemptions and lower market valuations of equity instruments held
for equity-linked notes issued. Additionally, the abovementioned shift
from debt instruments reduced financial investments available-for-
sale.

Balance sheet positions disclosed in this section represent quarter-
end positions. Intra-quarter balance sheet positions may be different.

= Refer to the table “FINMA leverage ratio” in the “Capital

management” section of this report for our average month-end balance
sheet size for the quarter

Divisional view

Much of our total assets growth originated in the Investment Bank as
the abovementioned change in positive replacement values
contributed significantly to the division’s CHF 88 billion balance sheet
increase (to CHF 1,078 billion). Retail & Corporate’s balance sheet
increased by CHF 24 billion to CHF 188 billion predominantly due to
the growth of cash placed with central banks. The balance sheet
assets of Wealth Management (CHF 99 billion), Wealth Management
Americas (CHF 54 billion), Treasury activities and other corporate
items (CHF 23 billion) and Global Asset Management (CHF 17
billion) all remained relatively stable.
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Liabilities

The increase in funded assets was mainly financed by additional
unsecured funding, which increased by CHF 13 billion. Our trading
liability positions increased by CHF 3 billion, contributing to the
growth of the collateral trading book as higher coverings were
required. In unsecured borrowing, our interbank funding rose mainly
due to variation margins for derivative instruments. We also
increased our money market paper issuances and our customer
deposits were up mainly in the prime brokerage business. The
financial liabilities designated at fair value declines were due to net
redemptions and lower market valuations of equity-linked notes.
Finally, our secured funding remained relatively stable at CHF 76
billion.

= Refer to the “Liquidity and funding” section of this report for more
information

Equity

Equity attributable to UBS shareholders increased by CHF 3.2 billion
due to the quarterly profit of CHF 2.0 billion as well as from gains
recognized in equity (including currency translation effects) of CHF
0.7 billion, and from the positive impact of equity compensation plans
on share premium of CHF 0.5 billion.

= Refer to the “Statement of changes in equity” table in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information

Risk and treasury management
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Liquidity and funding

Liquidity and funding

We have continued to safeguard our liquidity position and maintained the diversity of our funding sources. Market conditions for
financial institutions’ debt issuance deteriorated noticeably during second quarter 2010, as increasing concerns regarding sovereign
debt in several European countries led to heightened risk aversion and fears of contagion. This was reflected in the widening of
financial institutions’ senior bond spreads and credit default swap premiums.

New Swiss regulatory liquidity regime

On 21 April 2010, FINMA and the SNB announced that they had
developed a revised liquidity regime for big banks in collaboration
with Credit Suisse and UBS. The new liquidity principles, which came
into force on 30 June 2010, are designed to ensure stability within
the Swiss financial industry. The new regime is broadly consistent
with international proposals for liquidity regulations, particularly the
principles written by the Basel Committee for Banking Supervision.
The core element of the new liquidity regime is a stringent stress
scenario that combines a general financial market crisis with
creditors’ loss of trust in the bank. The new liquidity regulations will
require the banks to hold a balance of highly liquid assets sufficient
to offset the projected outflows under the stress scenario for a period
of 30 days. Our established internal liquidity stress tests consider a
severe stress scenario similar in nature to that used by the new
FINMA liquidity regime. We believe this will enable us to sustain our
business for a period substantially beyond the minimum regulatory
horizon.

Liquidity

We continuously track our liquidity position and asset / liability profile.
This involves modeling cash flow maturity profiles under both
contractual and behavioral expectations and projecting our liquidity
exposures under various stress scenarios. The results are then
factored into our overall contingency plans. The underlying
assumptions in the analysis reflect the characteristics of the recent
market crisis, including strong risk aversion, dislocation of the money
markets and a substantial reduction of market liquidity for all but a
select few asset classes. The severity of the assumptions underlying
our current stress scenario analysis exceeds the worst conditions
experienced during the recent financial crisis.

We seek to preserve at all times a prudent liquidity and funding
profile, a balanced asset/ liability profile and robust contingency
planning processes. We continue to maintain a substantial multi-
currency portfolio of unencumbered high-quality short-term assets.
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Funding

Our portfolio of liabilities is broadly diversified by market, product and
currency. The diversification of our portfolio remained relatively
stable during the quarter (refer to the “UBS: funding by product and
currency” table). We raise funds via numerous short-, medium- and
long-term funding programs, which allow institutional and private
clients in Europe, the US and Asia to customize their investments in
UBS. These broad product offerings, and the global scope of our
business activities, are the primary reasons for our funding stability to
date.

Our wealth management businesses continue to represent a
significant, cost-efficient and reliable source of funding. These
businesses contributed CHF 316 billion, or 76% of the CHF 414
billion total customer deposits shown in the “UBS asset funding”
graph. Customer cash deposits from the Wealth Management
businesses remained stable on a currency-adjusted basis.

As of 30 June 2010, our coverage ratio of customer deposits to our
outstanding loan balance increased to 138% compared with 134% on
31 March 2010. In terms of secured funding — i.e. repurchase
agreements and securities lent against cash collateral received, in
second quarter 2010 we borrowed CHF 122 billion less cash on a
collateralized basis than we lent. In second quarter 2010, we sold
CHF 0.45 billion of senior unsecured public notes with an average
maturity of four years, while senior unsecured public bonds totaling
CHF 1.5 billion equivalent matured during the quarter. On 8 July, we
sold CHF 2.3 billion equivalent of five-year EUR-denominated senior
unsecured bonds. Including these transactions, which settle in July,
we have raised a total of approximately CHF 10.5 billion year-to-date
through public bond issuances. We also continued to raise funds
through medium-term notes and private placements. At the end of
the second quarter, the total amount of our outstanding long-term
debt, including financial liabilities at fair value, stood at the equivalent
of CHF 184 billion, compared with CHF 196 billion at prior quarter-
end. Our outstanding money market paper issuance was CHF 59
billion at the end of the second quarter, compared with CHF 49 billion
at the prior quarter-end. The decrease in our outstanding long-term
debt was consistent with the decrease in our net trading assets,
loans and other assets (including net replacement values). Similarly,
the increases in money market and interbank borrowings were
aligned with increases in cash, balances with central banks and due
from banks, and cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements.



UBS asset funding

CHF billian, except where indicated
Asoof 30610
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1 Including campourd debt instruments — OTC.

UBS: funding by product and currency

All currencies CHF EUR USD Others
In % 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10 31.3.10
Securities lending 1.3 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.3 0.9 0.7 0.3 0.3
Repurchase agreements 8.1 8.4 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.9 4.9 4.6 1.2 0.9
Interbank 10.1 8.7 1.3 1.2 3.5 2.9 2.9 2.4 24 2.2
Money market paper 7.2 6.0 0.2 0.2 0.6 0.6 5.8 4.6 0.6 0.7
Retail savings / deposits 12.8 12.7 8.5 8.4 0.8 0.8 3.5 3.5 0.0 0.0
Demand deposits 23.6 23.8 5.2 5.0 4.4 4.9 10.7 10.4 3.3 3.5
Fiduciary 4.4 4.9 0.2 0.3 1.2 1.4 24 2.6 0.6 0.6
Time deposits 9.9 9.9 0.5 0.7 1.5 1.4 5.0 4.9 3.0 3.0
Long-term debt? 22.6 24.4 3.0 3.1 8.6 9.6 7.6 8.1 3.3 3.6
Total 100.0 100.0 19.9 19.7 21.8 23.9 43.7 41.8 14.6 14.7

1 As a percent of total funding sources of CHF 815 billion on the balance sheet comprising repurchase agreements, securities lending against cash collateral received, due to banks, money market
paper issued, due to customers and long-term debt (including financial liabilities at fair value). 2 Including financial liabilities designated at fair value.

41



Capital management

Capital management

The combination of a decrease in risk-weighted assets and an increase in the regulatory capital base led to a further improvement of

our BIS tier 1 capital ratio to 16.4% from 16.0% in first quarter 2010.

Capital ratios and RWA
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Capital ratios

On 30 June 2010, our BIS tier 1 capital ratio stood at 16.4% and our
BIS total capital ratio was 20.4%, up from 16.0% and 20.0%,
respectively, on 31 March 2010. The BIS tier 1 capital increased by
CHF 0.3 billion to CHF 33.7 billion, while risk-weighted assets (RWA)
decreased by CHF 4.3 billion to CHF 204.8 billion.

Risk-weighted assets

To facilitate comparability, we determine published RWA according
to the Basel Il Capital Accord (BIS guidelines). However, the RWA
calculated by UBS for supervisory purposes are based on regulations
of the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA), which
result in higher RWA than under the BIS guidelines.

The second quarter BIS RWA decrease of CHF 4.3 billion was due
to CHF 4.5 billion lower market risk RWA due to declines in average
regulatory VaR exposures and an increased diversification effect, as
well as from the decrease of CHF 0.1 billion in non-counterparty
related RWA. Credit risk RWA offset this reduction by CHF 0.4
billion, while operational risk RWA remained flat.
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Eligible capital

In order to determine eligible BIS tier 1 capital, specific adjustments
must be made to equity attributable to UBS shareholders as defined
by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and as shown
on our balance sheet. The most notable adjustments are the
deductions for goodwill, intangible assets, investments in
unconsolidated entities engaged in banking and financial activities,
and own credit effects on liabilities designated at fair value. There is
no difference in eligible capital between the BIS guidelines and
FINMA regulations.

BIS tier 1 capital

Of the CHF 0.3 billion increase in BIS tier 1 capital, CHF 2.0 billion is
attributable to second quarter 2010 net profit recognized under IFRS
and CHF 0.1 billion related to currency effects and others. These
positive effects were offset by a CHF 0.6 billion adjustment for capital
purposes of own credit and higher tier 1 deductions of CHF 0.2
billion. Furthermore, a CHF 1.0 billion reserve was established for the
USD 1.5 billion hybrid tier 1 instrument callable in October 2010
(subject to FINMA approval).

BIS tier 2 capital

Our BIS tier 2 capital declined by CHF 0.2 billion to CHF 8.2 billion.
The increase in upper tier 2 related to an increased excess in general
provisions over expected loss and to increased unrealized gains on
financial investments available-for-sale. This was more than offset by
the change in lower tier 2 due to lower eligibility of subordinated
bonds and to currency movements, as well as from higher tier 2
deductions.

FINMA leverage ratio

FINMA requires a minimum leverage ratio of 3% at the Group level,
with the expectation that the ratio will exceed this level during normal
times. The FINMA leverage ratio is being progressively implemented
until it is fully applicable on 1 January 2013. Our ratio remained
stable for the second quarter at 4.12%, with a proportional increase
of about 1% in both the BIS tier 1 capital and the total adjusted
assets.

The table on the next page shows the calculation of our Group
FINMA leverage ratio.



Risk and treasury management

Capital adequacy

CHF million, except where indicated 30.6.10 31.12.09
BIS tier 1 capital 33,685 31,798

of which: hybrid tier 1 capital 6,964 7,224
BIS total capital 41,867 40,941
BIS tier 1 capital ratio (%) 16.4 15.4
BIS total capital ratio (%) 20.4 19.8
BIS ri i

of which: non-counterparty related risk 6,706
O KOt IS K e e e 11,367 .....15904 . .12861

of which: operational risk 49,046
1 Includes securitization exposures and equity exposures not part of the trading book and capital requirements for settiement risk (failed trades).

Capital components
CHF million 30.6.10
BIS tier 1 capital prior to deductions

31.12.09
47,367

of which: innovative capital instruments

Less: treasury shares / deduction for own shares / accrual for callback hybrid tier 1 instruments? (2,519)

Less: gOOAWIll & INMANGIDIE ASSELS et ettt (11,202) Q) o (11,008)
L (5.568)

BIS tier 1 capital 33,685

Upper tier 2 capital 461 S
T R T ors
Less: other deduction items?2 (2,968)

BIS total capital 41,867 40,941

1 Consists of: i) net long position in own shares held for trading purposes; ii) own shares bought for unvested or upcoming share awards; iii) accruals built for upcoming share awards; and iv) accrual for
hybrid tier 1 instruments callable in October 2010, subject to approval from FINMA. 2 Positions to be deducted as 50% from tier 1 and 50% from total capital mainly consist of: i) net long position of
non-consolidated participations in the finance sector; ii) expected loss on Advanced internal ratings based portfolio less general provisions (if difference is positive); iii) expected loss for equities (simple
risk weight method); and iv) first loss positions from securitization exposures.

FINMA leverage ratio

CHF billion, except where indicated Average 2Q10 Average 1Q10 Average 4Q09
Total assets (IFRS) prior to deductions! 1,486.2 1,410.8 1,426.2
Less: netting of replacement values? (4489) (3966) (4209)
T Geiey T Geiay (i614)
Less: cash and balances with central banks (44.1) (29.1) (22.1)
Less: other4 (13.6) (12.9) (12.4)
Total adjusted assets 817.7 810.8 809.4
BIS tier 1 capital (at quarter-end) 33.7 33.4 31.8
FINMA Ieverage ratio (%) 4.12 4.12 3.93

1 Total assets are calculated as the average of the month-end values for the three months in the calculation period. 2 Includes the impact of netting agreements (including cash collateral) in
accordance with Swiss Federal Banking law, based on the IFRS scope of consolidation. 3 Includes mortgage loans to international clients for properties located in Switzerland. * Refer to the “Capital
components” table for more information on deductions of assets from BIS tier 1 capital.
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Capital management

Average attributed equity

CHF billion

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank

Wealth Management

Retail & Corporate

Global Asset Management

Invi

Average equity attributed to the business divisions 45.5 45.5 445"
Surplus / (Deficit) (1.1) (3.6) (4.2)
44.4 41.9 40.3

Average equity attributable to UBS shareholders

Equity attribution

Our equity attribution framework aims to reflect our objectives of
maintaining a strong capital base as well as guiding each business
towards activities that appropriately balance profit potential, risk and
capital usage. The design of the framework enables us to calculate
and assess return on attributed equity (RoaE) in each of our
businesses and integrates Group-wide capital management activities
with those at a business division level.

= Refer to the “Capital management” section of our Annual Report 2009
for more information

There has been no change from first quarter 2010 average attributed
equity. As shown in the “Average attributed equity” table, a total of
CHF 45.5 billion of average equity was attributed to UBS’s

business divisions as well as Treasury activities and other corporate
items in second quarter 2010. Equity attributable to UBS
shareholders averaged CHF 44.4 billion during this period, which
resulted in a deficit of CHF 1.1 billion.

UBS shares

Total UBS shares issued increased in second quarter 2010 by 9,399
shares due to exercises of employee options.

UBS holds its own shares primarily to hedge employee share and
option participation plans. A smaller number is held by the
Investment Bank in its capacity as a market-maker in UBS shares
and related derivatives. Treasury shares increased by 1,477,671
shares in second quarter 2010 due to a higher position held by the
Investment Bank.

UBS shares
change from
30.6.10 31.3.10 31.3.10
Ordinary shares issued 3,830,805,268  3,830,795,869 9,399
188U Of Shares for @m0y O ODHONS 9,399
Tr'éééu"ry'éh'é'r'é's ........................................................................................................................................ sesTsaTE SsEsaEe i e
Shares outstanding 3,792,432,793 3,793,901,065 (1,468,272)
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Financial information

Financial statements

Financial statements (unaudited)

Income statement

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million, except per share data Note 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Continuing operations
Interest income 3 4,864 4,798 6,035 1 (19) 9,661 13,680
Interest expense 3 (3,771) (2,980) (4,892) 27 (23) (6,751) (10,638)
Net interest income 3 1,003 818 143 @0) @ 2911 3,042
Grodit 1655 (axpansa]  Tecavery e g (3gg) @) 6 (1 523)

Net interest income after credit
loss expense

Net fee and commission income

Other income

Total operating income 9,185 2 59 18,195 10,740

Personnel expenses 6 4,645 3 1 9166 8,542

Gt A B e

expenses 7 1,638 1,419 1,699 15 (4) 3,057 3,334

Depreciation of property and

equipment 257 234 284 10 (10) 491 537

Impairment of goodwill 0 0 492 (100) 0 1,123

Rmarizaton of inianaibla aagats g e gg i R — g

Total operating expenses 6,571 6,200 7,093 6 (7) 12,772 13,621

Operating profit from continuing

operations before tax 2,614 2,810 (1,323) (7) 5,424 (2,881)

Tax expense 9 311 603 (208) (48) 914 86

Net profit from continuing

operations 2,303 2,207 (1,115) 4 4,509 (2,967)

Discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations

before tax 0 2 7 (100) (100) 2 7.

o BTG g g G B o 5

Net profit from discontinued

operations 0 2 7 (100) (100) 2 17

Net profit 2,303 2,208 (1,108) 4 4,511 (2,949)

Net profit attributable to minority

interests 298 6 294 LR S04 427

..... o T 303 18
from discontinued operations 0 1 4 (100) (100) 1 9

Net profit attributable to UBS

shareholders 2,005 2,202 (1,402) O 4207 (3,376)

O GO Soos 5 (1405)(9) ............... dao7 (3385

B T g o g T T S o R

Earnings per share (CHF)

Basic earnings per share 8 9)

from continuing operations
from discontinued operations

from discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00




Financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income

Quarter ended Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Net profit 2,303 2,208 (1,108) 4,511 (2,949)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency translation movements, before tax (33) 4 (6 8 834
Foreion exohanas Bmounis rosiasiad v e naams Siatamant rom ey Gay— g E a— g (335
Income tax relating to foreign currency translation movements (6) 2) 0 (8) 13
Subtotal foreign currency translation movements, net of tax (52) 72 (326) 20 515

Financial investments available-for-sale
Net unrealized gains / (losses) on financial investments available-for-sale, before tax
Impairment charges reclassified to the income statement from equity

Realized losses reclassified to the income statement from equity
Income tax relating to net unrealized gains / (losses) on financial investments

available-for-sale (8) (13) (25) (21) (26)
Subtotal net unrealized gains / (losses) on financial investments available-for-sale, net
of tax 50 (46) 81 4 67

Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash

flow hedges, before tax 948 759 (550) 1,707 (63)
Net unrealized (gains) / losses reclassified to the income statement from equity (321) (336) (132) (657) (208)
o tax offeets Talating to cash flow Fedgas T Gy T a— sdg r — e
Subtotal changes in fair value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow

hedges 501 335 (434) 836 (105)
Total other comprehensive income 499 361 (679) 860 477
Total comprehensive income 2,802 2,569 (1,786) 5,371 (2,472)
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests 101 (80) 253 21 689
Total comprehensive income attributable to UBS shareholders 2,701 2,649 (2,039) 5,350 (3,161)
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Financial information

Balance sheet

As of % change from
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 31.12.09 31.12.09

Assets
Cash and balances with central banks e 02,624 41,081 20899 ......200

Due from banks
Cash collateral on securities borrowed

Reverse repurchase agreements 127,331 116,689 9
Trading portfolio assets 171495 177386 188037 . ©)
Trading portfolio assets pledged as collateral 52647 52042 44221 19
Positive replacement values 504,210 421,694 20
Financial assets designated at fair value 10,047 10,223 2)
T T 306828(3)
S S = S Gy gy — ( 12)
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 5,999 5,816 3
INVESIMENTS IN ASSOCIAMES | oo 898 02 870 e 3.
'bebérfy'é'nd"edu'ibhiéﬁi ............................................................................................................. R GG .(5..)
Goodwill and intangible assets 11,202 11,008 2
Deferred tax assets 8,103 8,868 9)
Bt Bt S T — S 8
Total assets 1,458,223 1,340,538 9
Liabilities

Due to banks 82,262 65,166 26
Cash collateral on securities lent 10,759 7,995 35

7 64,175 2

Repurchase agre

,469 19
Negative repiacement valliss ds7oge o6 g8 406 Gan 51
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 104,679 114,568 112,653 (7)
DU 10 QUSIOMIGS om0 413859 . arnsar 410475 1
Accrued expenses and deferredincome 7082 6,775 8689 (18)
Debt issued 138,041 130,326 131,352 5
Other liabilities 29,132 33,116 33,986 (14)
Total liabilities 1,404,879 1,306,083 1,291,905 9
Equity
e oL 383 .58 .36 B
Share premium SAORT T ERAGE T RATRE T
Cumulative net income recognized directly in equity, net of tax (3,731)
o : s

Equity classified as obligation to purchase own shares (53)

Treasury shares (646) (1,040) 38
Equity attributable to UBS shareholders 46,017 41,013 12
Bty SHBIEBIE 1o iRy o 17 s SR G
Total equity 53,344 48,633 10
Total liabilities and equity 1,458,223 1,356,427 1,340,538 9




Financial statements

Statement of changes in equity

Equity classified
as obligation
to purchase

CHF million Share capital ~ Share premium  Treasury shares own shares

Balance at 31 December 2008 293 (3,156) (46)

Issuance of share capital 30

Acquisition of treasury shares (407)

e L 2264
Net premium / (discount) on treasury share and own equity derivative activiy 7 (1iezy

Premium on shares issued and warrants exercised 3,776

bl ke kool skl ok, 7)o
Tax benefits from deferred compensation awards e
T e (g —————

Dividends!

£

Preferred securities
New consolidations and other increases
Deconsolidations and other decreases

Total comprehensive income for the period recognized in equity

Balance at 30 June 2009 323 27,549 (1,299) (56)

Balance at 31 December 2008 e 356 34,786 ....Q040) @
Issuance of share capital 2T
Acquisition of treasury shares (1,367)

Disposition of treasury shares 1,761

Net premium / (discount) on treasury share and own equity derivative activity (1A3) e
Premium on shares issued and warrants exercised (27)

Employee share and share option plans (430)

Tax benefits from deferred compensation awards (6)

Dividends?

Equity classified as obligation to purchase own shares — movements (51)

PO O O SO U S e e e
New consolidations and other increases

Deconsolidations and other decreases

Total comprehensive income for the period recognized in equity

Balance at 30 June 2010 383 34,067 (646) (53)
1 Includes dividend payment obligations for preferred securities.

Preferred securities?

For the six-month period ended

CHF million 30.6.10 30.6.09
Balance at the beginning of the period 7,254 7,381

Redemptions 7) (7)
Foreign currency translation (285) 154
Balance at the end of the period 6,962 7,528

1 Represents equity attributable to minority interests. Increases and offsetting decreases of equity attributable to minority interests due to dividends are excluded from this table.
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Financial information

Revaluation Total equity

Financial reserve attributable

Foreign currency investments from step to UBS
Retained earnings translation available-for-sale Cash flow hedges acquisitions  shareholders Minority interests Total equity
14,487 (6,309) 347 1,627 38 32,531 8,002 40,533
30 30
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (407)(407)
e BB ——— 5564
(1,162) (1,162)
3,776 3,776
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (279)(279)
1 1
(37) (37)
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ (10) JESSSRRRSSSSOSPRNSRSIUIS o eshed SO "('16)
0 ) @)
e 0 s Y e 1.
0 ©) ©)
(3,376) 359 (39) (105) (3,161) 689 (2,472)
11,111 (5,950) 308 1,522 38 33,545 8,011 41,556
11,751 (6,445) 364 1,206 38 41,013 7,620 48,633

15,959 (6,150) 377 2,042 38 46,017 7,327 53,344




Financial statements

Statement of cash flows

For the six-month period ended
CHF million 30.6.10 30.6.09

Cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

Net profit 4,511 (2,949)

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

Non-cash terma "i'h"(:'I"Li'd'éd"i'r'i"ﬁéi"b}'d'fi't”éﬁaudt”ﬁé}' "é'djﬁ's”t"rﬁéﬁié'f ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
Depreciation of property and equipment 491

Impairment of goodwill / amortization of intangible assets

Share of net profits of associates

Deferred tax expense / (benefit) 745
...... Net loss / (gain) from investing activities e V8O (D)
Net loss / (gain) from financing activities (5,642)

Net (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Net due from / to banks

Loans / due to customers

Accrued inCome, Prepaid eXpeNSeS ANd Ol er A8 SOl e (114) ... T40
Kot incroase ('dééréai's"e)" - bhe"r étih'g'iiét')'iliiiéé: ..........................................................................................................................................................
Repurchase agreements, cash collateral on securities lent 4,315 (7,128)
Accrued expenses, deferred income and other liabilities (6,353) (5,849)
'I'h'ééhﬁ'é"'téié'é'ﬁéi&;"ﬁéi"b'f'i?'e"f'ﬁﬁ'd'é .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (201)(352)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities 36,502 6,953

Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities

PUICNaS Of U S S AN A O S e O (78)
Disposal of Subsidiaries and assogiates g 181
Purchase of property and equipment (228) (401)
Disposal of property and equipment 9 44
Niot (muastmant i 7 Givastmont of fnandial invastmants avalaBlo for T R i
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (6,393) 171

Cash flow from / (used in) financing activities

Net money market papers ISSUE / (TEPAIG) | e 7,020 (25,698)
Net movements in treasury shares and own equity derivative activity (1098 163
Capital issuance (113) 3,775
Issuance of long-term debt, including financial liabilities designated at fair value 40,154 53,679
Rapaymant of lona A6 Gt inaiumin fvancial TAbioS dagianaten ot Fair VAl G aREy E5 6565
Increase in minority interests 5 2
Dividends paid to / decrease in minority interests (394) (28)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing aCtiVties et 7951 o (23,803)
Effocts of exchangs rate differences A 5485
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 32,725 (11,189)
Gah i Gash Savalamis BT e BaGInG BTt Dama L feasry 176665
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 197,697 168,504
Cash AN CaSh U IOt GO IS e
Cash and balances with central banks 62,624 37,682
R d8565 81047
Due from banks with original maturity of less than three months 46,478 46,775
Total 197,697 168,504

1 Money market papers are included in the balance sheet under Trading portfolio assets, Trading portfolio assets pledged as collateral and Financial investments available-for-sale.
Cash paid as interest was CHF 7,328 million and CHF 13,012 million during the first half of 2010 and the first half of 2009, respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements

Financial information

Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Basis of accounting

UBS AG’s (“UBS”) consolidated financial statements (financial
statements) are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and stated in Swiss francs
(CHF). These financial statements are presented in accordance with
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

In preparing the interim financial statements, the same accounting
principles and methods of computation have been applied as in the
financial statements on 31 December 2009 and for the year then
ended, except for the changes set out below and in “Note 1 Basis of
accounting” in the “Financial information” section of UBS’s first
quarter 2010 report. For fair value measurements and changes in
valuation techniques, UBS provides complementary information in
“Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments” in the “Financial
information” section of its quarterly reports.

The interim financial statements are unaudited. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim
periods have been made. These interim financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included
in UBS’s Annual Report 2009.

Wealth Management & Swiss Bank reorganization

Commencing first quarter 2010, the internal reporting of Wealth

Management & Swiss Bank to the Group Executive Board was

revised in order to better reflect the management structure and

responsibilities. Segregated financial information is now reported for:

— “Wealth Management”, encompassing all wealth management
business conducted out of Switzerland and in our Asian and
European booking centers;

— “Retail & Corporate”, including services provided to Swiss retail
private clients, small and medium enterprises and corporate and
institutional clients.

In line with this revised internal reporting structure and IFRS 8
Operating segments, Wealth Management and Retail & Corporate
are now presented in our external financial reports as separate
business units and reportable segments. Prior periods presented
have been restated to conform to the new presentation format.

Allocation of additional Corporate Center costs to business divisions
From first quarter 2010 onwards, all costs incurred by the Corporate
Center related to shared services and control functions are allocated
to the business units (reportable segments) which directly and
indirectly receive the value of the services. The allocated costs are
shown in the respective expense lines of the reportable segments in
“Note 2 Segment reporting” in the “Financial information” section of
this report and in the management report sections of UBS’s quarterly
and annual reports.

Up to and including 2009, certain costs incurred by the Corporate
Center were presented as Corporate Center expenses and not
charged to the business divisions. The change in allocation policy
has been applied prospectively and numbers presented for 2009
periods in this report have not been restated. Refer to “Note 1 Basis
of accounting” in the “Financial information” section of UBS’s first
quarter 2010 report for an indication of the average estimated impact
on quarterly 2009 figures, had the new allocation methodology been
applied to 2009.

The incremental charges to the business divisions made from first
quarter 2010 onwards mainly relate to control functions.

The “Corporate Center” column of the table in “Note 2 Segment
reporting” in the “Financial information” section of this report has
been renamed “Treasury activities and other corporate items”. It
mainly includes the results of treasury activities, for example from the
management of foreign exchange risks and interest rate risks,
residual operating expenses such as those associated with the
functioning of the Group Executive Board and the Board of Directors,
other costs related to the management of our organization as well as
a limited number of specifically defined items. These items currently
include the valuation of UBS’s option to acquire the SNB StabFund’s
equity, certain expenses such as capital taxes and certain non-
banking activities.

Improvements to IFRSs 2010

The IASB issued in May 2010 amendments to seven standards as
part of its annual improvements project. UBS will adopt the
Improvements to IFRSs 2010 as of 1 January 2011. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on UBS’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 2 Segment reporting

Transactions between the reportable segments are carried out at used to allocate external client revenues to a segment and cost-
internally agreed rates or at arm’s length and are reflected in the allocation agreements are used to allocate shared costs between the
performance of each segment. Revenue-sharing agreements are segments.
Wealth Treasury activities
Wealth Management & Management Global Asset Investment and other
Swiss Bank Americas Management Bank corporate items! UBS
Wealth Retail &
CHF million Management Corporate

For the six months ended 30 June 2010

Net interest income 842 1,213 346 (4) 1,011 (496) 2,911
Non-interest income 2,953 755 2,502 1,047 6,906 1,044 15,216
Income? 3,794 1,977 2,847 1,043 7,918 547 18,127
Credit loss (expense) / recovery 0 (5) 0 0 73 0 68
Total operating income 3,795 1,973 2,847 1,043 7,990 547 18,195
Personnel expenses 1,578 813 2,192 576 3,992 14 9,166
General and administrative expenses 551 403 560 193 1,291 59 3,057

Services (to) / from other business divisions (255)

Impairment of goodwill

Amortization of intangible assets 58
Total operating expenses 12,772
Performance from

continuing operations before tax 1,354 938 (52) 254 2,504 425 5,424
Performance from

discontinued operations before tax 2 2
Performance before tax 1,354 938 (52) 254 2,504 427

Tax expense on discontinued operations

Net profit

As of 30 June 2010

Total assets3 98,538 188,190 53,990 16,738 1,078,206 22,560 1,458,223
1 Certain cost allocations to the business divisions are based on periodically agreed flat fees, which are charged to the business divisions on a monthly basis. This could lead to a difference between
actually incurred Corporate Center costs and charges to the business divisions, the result of which is shown in the column Treasury activities and other corporate items. 2 The total inter-segment

revenues for the Group are immaterial as the majority of the revenues are allocated across the business divisions by means of revenue-sharing agreements. 3 The segment assets are based on a
third-party view and this basis is in line with the internal reporting to the management, i.e. the amounts do not include inter-company balances.
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Financial information

Note 2 Segment reporting (continued)

Transactions between the reportable segments are carried out at used to allocate external client revenues to a segment and cost-
internally agreed rates or at arm’s length and are reflected in the allocation agreements are used to allocate shared costs between the
performance of each segment. Revenue-sharing agreements are segments.
Wealth Treasury activities
Wealth Management & Management Global Asset Investment and other
Swiss Bank Americas Management Bank corporate items UBS
Wealth Retail &
CHF million Management Corporate

Non-interest income
Income!

Credit loss (expense) / recovery

Total operating income

Personnel expenses

General and administrative expenses
Services (to) / from other business units

1,123

Impairment of goodwill

Amortization of intangible assets 9 0 84

Total operating expenses 2,649 901 13,621

Performance from

continuing operations before tax 1,177 832 (256) 24 (5,008) 351 (2,881)
Performance from

discontinued operations before tax 17 17

Performance before tax 1,177 832 (256) 24 (5,008) 368 . (2,863)
ﬁ"éi;(we"kﬁé'ﬁéé"Ei'ri"'(':'éﬁ't'i'ﬁﬁi"rié'Bbé}éi't'i'c'iﬁé ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. e

Tax expense on discontinued operations 0

Net profit (2,949)

As of 31 December 2009
Total assets? 109,627 138,513 53,197 20,238 991,964 26,999 1,340,538

1 The total inter-segment revenues for the Group are immaterial as the majority of the revenues are allocated across the business divisions by means of revenue-sharing agreements. 2 The segment
assets are based on a third-party view and this basis is in line with the internal reporting to the management, i.e. the amounts do not include inter-company balances.
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 3 Net interest and trading income

Accounting standards require separate disclosure of Net interest
income and Net trading income (see the tables on this and the next
page). This required disclosure, however, does not take into account
that net interest and trading income are generated by a range of
different businesses. In many cases, a particular business can
generate both interest and trading income. Fixed income trading
activity, for example, generates both trading profits and coupon
income. UBS considers it to be more meaningful to analyze net
interest and trading income according to the businesses that drive it.
The second table below (Breakdown by businesses)

For the quarter ended

provides information that corresponds to this view: Net income from
trading businesses includes both interest and trading income
generated by the Investment Bank, including its lending activities,
and trading income generated by the other business divisions; Net
income from interest margin businesses comprises interest income
from the loan portfolios of Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and
Wealth Management Americas; Net income from treasury activities
and other reflects all income from the Group’s centralized treasury
function.

% change from Year-to-date

CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Net interest and trading income

Net interest income 1,093 1,818 1,143 (40) (4) 2,911 - 3,042
Né't'"t"r'éaiﬁ;cj”ih"é'c'i e T Sags e dg i 416)
Total net interest and trading income 4,543 4,186 1,363 9 233 8,729 2,632
Breakdown by businesses

Net income from trading businesses! 3,008 2,700 (207) 11 5,708 (847)
Net income from interest margin businesses 1,166 1,119 1,302 4 (10) 2,285 2,623
Né't”'i'r'i'é'c')'r'ﬁé"f'r”c')'fh'"t'féé'é[j'r'y"éEfi'\'/'i'fi'éé"568"6't'ﬁé'r' ......................................................................................... agg g sgg oo g S s
Total net interest and trading income 4,543 4,186 1,363 9 233 8,729 2,632
" Includes lending activities of the Investment Bank.

Net interest income

Interest income

T X A T A VT R O R— 7 R s B
Interest earned on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements 373 297 741 26 (50) 670 1,847
Interest and dividend income from trading portfolio 1,658 1,495 1,764 11 (6) 3,153 4,422
'I'h't'é'iéé'{"iﬁf:'é?ﬁé"6}'1”ﬁﬁéﬁ&iéi'éé'é'e"fs"'d'é'éiéjﬁét'é'd"éi'féi'f”\'/'éiiﬁéw"””W"””W""”"'”""”"'””""”Wég ......................... ga P G i R fag ieo”
Interest and dividend income from financial investments available-for-sale 161 94 18 71 794 255 35
Total 4,864 4,798 6,035 1 (19) 9,661 13,680
Interest expense

Interest on amounts due to banks and customers 520 492 1,051 (51) 1,011

Interest on securities lent and repurchase agreements 397 265 655 (39) 662

Interest on financial liabilities designated at fair value 580 589 742 (22) 1,168
Interest on debt issued 799 801 1,098 (27) 1,599
Total 3,771 2,980 4,892 (23) 6,751
Net interest income 1,093 1,818 1,143 (40) (4) 2,911

Interest includes forward points on foreign exchange swaps used to manage short-term interest rate risk on foreign currency loans and deposits.
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Note 3 Net interest and trading income (continued)

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09

Net trading income!

1,835

Net trading income 5,818 (410)

of which: net gains / (losses) from financial

liabilities designated at fair value? 4,535 798 (5,057 ) 468 5,333 (374.)
1 Refer to the table “Net interest and trading income” on the previous page for the Net income from trading businesses (for an explanation, refer to the corresponding introductory comment).
2 Financial liabilities designated at fair value are to a large extent economically hedged with derivatives and other instruments whose change in fair value is also reported in Net trading income. For
more information on own credit refer to “Note 11b Fair value of financial instruments”.

Net trading income in second quarter 2010 included a loss of CHF Second quarter 2010 net trading income also included a gain of
0.1 billion from credit valuation adjustments for monoline credit CHF 0.1 billion from the valuation of UBS’s option to acquire the SNB
protection (CHF 0.3 billion gain in first quarter 2010 and CHF 0.5 StabFund’s equity (CHF 0.2 billion gain in first quarter 2010 and CHF
billion gain in second quarter 2009). 0.1 billion gain in second quarter 2009).

= Refer to the “Risk management and control” section of this report for
more information on exposure to monolines
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Note 4 Net fee and commission income

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Equity underwriting fees 272 376 (13 (37 508 650
Debt underwriting fees
Total underwritingfees .42 4 ....ee sy vy o 82 2t

M&A and corporate finance fees
Brokerage fees!

anagement and advisory fees
Insurance-related and other fees
Total securities trading and investment activity fees

Commission income from other services

Total fee and commission income 4,925

Brokerage fees paid! 09 o..ers)seA s 88 T95
B o
Total fee and commission expense 559

Net fee and commission income . 4366 .48 A% S8 888 BT
i 'hét"biékér'é'gé P D 1 T

1In second quarter 2010, UBS corrected the amounts presented in previous periods on the lines “Brokerage fees”, “Brokerage fees paid”, “Other” and “Net brokerage fees”. Amounts previously
disclosed have been decreased as follows: “Brokerage fees” by CHF 205 million for the quarter ended 31 March 2010, CHF 225 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2009, CHF 403 million for year-to-
date 30 June 2009; “Brokerage fees paid” by CHF 135 million for the quarter ended 31 March 2010, CHF 142 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2009, CHF 251 million for year-to-date 30 June
2009; “Other” and “Net brokerage fees” by CHF 70 million for the quarter ended 31 March 2010, CHF 83 million for the quarter ended 30 June 2009, CHF 152 million for year-to-date 30 June 2009. The
total of “Net fee and commission income” and consequently “Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders” are not affected by this correction.

Note 5 Other income

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Associates and subsidiaries
Net gains from disposals of consolidated subsidiaries’ 16 (34) 316 (95) (18) 452
Net gains from disposals of investments in associates (2) . 180 () o (100) 79 (.
Ghare of net profits of assoiaten qa g g (g gy 05
Total 31 180 314 (83) (90) 211 463
Financial investments available-for-sale
Net gains from disposals 39 48 25 (19) 56 86 46
Impairment charges (24) (26) (48) 8 50 (50) (143)
Total 15 21 (22) (29) 37 (97)
Net income from investments in property2 15 14 21 7 (29) 28 40
Net gains from investment properties3 6 (10) (29) (4) (33)
Other4 258 131 9 97 389 515
Total other income 324 337 292 (4) 11 660 887

1 Includes foreign exchange amounts reclassified from equity upon disposal or deconsolidation of subsidiaries. 2 Includes net rent received from third parties and net operating expenses. 3 Includes
unrealized and realized gains from investment properties at fair value and foreclosed assets. “Includes net gains from disposals of loans and receivables.
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Note 6 Personnel expenses

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Salaries and variable compensation 3,727 3,781 3,351 (1) 11 7,508 6,322
Contractors 52 52 72 0 (28) 105 161
Insuranceandsocnalsecuntycontnbutlons ............................................... Sog g g T —— Gy dgg 50"
Contributions to retirement plang e g s S By g s
Other personnel expenses 493 258 671 91 (27) 751 1,164
Total personnel expenses 4,645 4,521 4,578 3 1 9,166 8,542
Note 7 General and administrative expenses

For the quarter ended % change from Year-to-date
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Occupancy 322 334 364 (4) (12) 656 739

Marketing and public relations 77
Travel and entertainment 121
Professional fees

Total general and administrative expenses 1,638 1,419 1,699 15 (4) 3,057 3,334
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Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding
As of or for the quarter ended

% change from Year-to-date

30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 1Q10 2Q09 30.6.10 30.6.09
Basic earnings (CHF million)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 2,005 2,202 (1,402) 9) 4,207 (3,376)
from continuing operations 2,005 2202 . (1405 . O) 4207 (3,385)
..... from discontinued oparations. e P G P i e SR
Diluted earnings (CHF million)
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders 2,005 2,202 (1,402) O 4207 (3,376)
Loss: (profit]  ioss on equity derivative confrasts G g gy e S @
Net profit attributable to UBS shareholders for
diluted EPS 1,997 2,202 (1,405) 9) 4,202 (3,380)
from continuing operations 1,997 2,202 (1,408) 9) 4,202 (3,389)
“rom discontinued operations g S5 o 3 ooy oy o
Weighted average shares outstanding
Weighted average shares outstanding for basic
EPS 3,792,345,213 3,777,504,682 3,5656,478,294 0 7 3,784,924,947 3,529,006,457
Potentially dilutive ordinary shares resulting from
unvested exchangeable shares, in-the-money
options and warrants outstanding’ 52,732,447 28,403,845 716,858 86 40,473,228 2,351,944
Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted
EPS 3,845,077,660 3,805,908,527 3,557,195,152 1 8 3,825,398,175 3,531,358,401
Potential ordinary shares from unexercised
employee shares and in-the-money options not
considered due to the anti-dilutive effect 0 0 15,761,129 (100) 0 16,534,340
Earnings per share (CHF)
Basic 053 058 039) ... O) LEL L (0.96)
..... e T R i1 (6.96)
from discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Diluted 0.52 058 ©39) .« 10) 110 (0.96)
..... e R S (6.96)
from discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Shares outstanding
Ordinary shares issued 3,830,805,268 3,830,795,869 3,225,849,284 0 19
Treasury shares 38,372,475 36,894,804 44,992,074 4 (15)
Shares outstanding 3,792,432,793 3,793,901,065 3,180,857,210 (0) 19
Mandatory convertible notes and exchangeable
shares? 605,827 613,456 605,543,434 (1) (100)
Shares outstanding for EPS 3,793,038,620 3,794,514,521 3,786,400,644 (0) 0

1 Total equivalent shares outstanding on out-of-the-money options that were not dilutive for the respective periods but could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future were 279,710,549;

278,104,176 and 291,295,430 for the quarters ended 30 June 2010, 31 March 2010 and 30 June 2009, respectively, and 281,133,697 and 290,034,314 for year-to-date 30 June 2010 and 30 June
2009, respectively. An additional 100 million ordinary shares (“contingent share issue”) related to the SNB transaction were not dilutive for the quarters ended 30 June 2010, 31 March 2010 and 30
June 2009 and for year-to-date 30 June 2010 and 30 June 2009, but could potentially dilute earnings per share in the future. 230 June 2009 includes 272,651,005 shares for the mandatory
convertible notes issued in March 2008 and 332,225,913 shares for the mandatory convertible notes issued in December 2008. Remaining amounts related to exchangeable shares.
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Note 9 Income taxes

The tax expense of CHF 311 million in second quarter 2010 includes penses of CHF 89 million in other locations. These tax expenses
a deferred tax expense of CHF 464 million as Swiss tax losses (for were partially offset by an increase in deferred tax assets for prior
which deferred tax assets have previously been recognized) are year tax losses of CHF 187 million and a tax benefit of CHF 55
used against profits for the quarter and also tax ex- million for tax losses agreed with a foreign tax authority.

Note 10 Trading portfolio
CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 31.12.09

Trading portfolio assets

Government and government agencies 72,470 76,132 81,309
Banks 26,641 16,824 15,024
Corporates and other 37,912 40,808 39,902
Total debt instruments 137,023 133,763 136,234
Equity instruments 49,687 59,302 57,541
Precious metals and other commodities 18,779 15,436 16,864
B T Soamy 51616
Total trading portfolio assets 224,142 229,428 232,258

Trading portfolio liabilities
Debt instruments

Government and government agencies 31,417 28,316 26,306
Banks 2,795 3,675 3,472
”Cb'f'b'cﬁféféus”éﬁ'a”cﬁ"hé"f ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... T T T Sia
Total debt instruments 39,132 37,460 35,226
Equity instruments 17,137 15,786 12,243
Total trading portfolio liabilities 56,269 53,246 47,469
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Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments

a) Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments at fair value are categorized into one of three
fair value hierarchy levels at quarter end, based upon the lowest level
input that is significant to the product’s fair value measurement in its

entirety:

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techniques

— Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities

— Level 2 — valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are
market observable, either directly or indirectly; and

— Level 3 — valuation techniques which include significant inputs that
are not based on observable market data

30.6.10 31.3.10
CHF billion Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Trading portfolio assets 95.1 66.7 9.7 1715 109.8 56.7 10.8 177.4
Trading portiolo assets piedged as coliateral 313 qes s e s qes T T e
Positive replacement vaiues 46 4809 186 5042 36 U 3ezd 20 4187
Financial assets designated at fair value 0.8 8.8 0.5 10.0 1.2 8.9 0.3 10.3
Financial investments available-for-sale 62.1 8.2 1.5 7.7 68.1 8.0 1.4 77.5
Total assets 193.9 584.5 31.7 810.1 217.0 483.0 35.9 735.9
Trading portfolio liabilities 42.1 13.8 0.3 56.3 39.0 13.9 0.3 53.2
Negative replacement values a2 . aTr8 181 Aerd 36 .. 387 . 171 4094
Financial liabilities designated at fair vaiue | 0.0 e T 17 1047 o0 T 1018 127 1146
Total liabilities 46.3 584.6 27.2 658.0 42.6 504.4 30.2 577.2

Movements of level 3 instruments

Trading portfolio assets
(including those pledged
as collateral)

Derivative instruments

Financial liabilities
designated at fair value

CHF billion Positive replacement values Negative replacement values

Balance at 31 December 2009 12.2 23.8 17.0 10.3

Gains / losses included in the income statement (0.1) 0.5 0.2 0.4

Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements (0.3) (1.5) (0.9) (0.8)
PUrchases and isSUBNCeS e 0-8 e 1 e 10 ] 15
Sales and settlements (0.9) (3.0) (2.0) (2.3)
Transfers into and / or out of level 3 0.3 0.2 1.7 2.7

Transters N0 Vel 8 e 0. e 2 22 2.7
Transfers out of level 3 (0.6) (2.0) (0.5) 0.0

FX translation 0.1 (1.0) (0.9) 0.1

Balance at 31 March 2010 12.2 22.0 171 12.7

Gains / losses included in the income statement 0.2 0.2 0.1 (0.3)

Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements

Purchases and issuances
Sales and settlements

Transfers into and / or out of level 3 (1.5) (1.3) (1.6) (0.9)
TraNSIIS INM0 IOVRI B et 2 . A 04
Transfers out of level 3 (3.6) (2.2) (2.4) (1.3)
FX translation 0.1 0.5 0.6 0.3
Balance at 30 June 2010 11.2 18.6 15.1 11.7
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Financial information

Material changes in level 3 instruments

As of 30 June 2010, financial instruments measured with valuation

techniques using significant non-market observable inputs (level 3)

mainly included the following:

— structured rates and credit trades, including bespoke collateralized
debt obligations (CDOs) and collateralized loan obligations
(CLOs)

— reference-linked notes

— instruments linked to the US sub-prime residential and US
commercial real estate markets

— corporate bonds and corporate credit default swaps (CDS)

— equity linked notes issued by UBS

Trading portfolio assets

Trading portfolio assets transferred into and out of level 3 amounted
to CHF 2.1 billion and CHF 3.6 billion respectively. Approximately
CHF 1.2 billion transfers into level 3 were related to corporate bonds
as no independent price verification could be found. Traded loans of
CHF 0.3 billion were transferred into level 3 as trading activity dried-
up and no independent pricing source was available. Transfers out of
level 3 comprised CHF 2.1 billion of corporate bonds, of which CHF
1.3 billion were related to puttable bonds, CHF 0.5 billion to traded
loans and CHF 0.4 billion to CLOs and sovereign bonds of CHF 0.2
billion, since independent pricing sources allowed verification of fair
values.

Level 3 trading assets purchased within the second quarter mainly
include corporate bonds of CHF 0.2 billion, US residential mortgage
backed securities (RMBS) of CHF 0.3 billion (due to the consolidation
of a RMBS CDO), lending related products of CHF 0.2 billion, asset
backed securities bonds of

b) Valuation and sensitivity information

CHF 0.1 billion and non-US-reference-linked notes of CHF 0.1 billion.
Due to sales and settlements, level 3 instruments decreased by
CHF 1 billion. Positions related to US real estate decreased by CHF
0.4 billion, corporate bonds by CHF 0.2 billion, lending related
products by CHF 0.1 billion and commodities by CHF 0.1 billion.

Derivative instruments

Transfers into level 3 instruments included positive replacement
values of CHF 0.9 billion and negative replacement values of CHF
0.8 billion. Transfers out of level 3 instruments included positive
replacement values of CHF 2.2 billion and negative replacement
values of CHF 2.4 billion.

Transfers into level 3 of replacement values included distressed
corporate credit default swaps (CDS) as credit curves and recovery
rates could not be tested. Additionally, they included structured credit
trades as there was no independent market data available.

Transfers of replacement values out of level 3 mainly consisted of
subprime RMBS and structured credit bespoke CDO positions
following improved data sourcing, and corporate and sovereign CDS
for which recovery rates and credit spreads could be observed in the
market.

Net issuances, purchases, sales and settlements in positive and
negative replacement values of CHF 1.7 billion included RMBS CDS
commutations and terminations of protection following liquidation of
referenced RMBS CDOs of CHF 1.5 billion.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value

Financial liabilities designated at fair value transferred out of level 3
included an equity linked note of CHF 0.7 billion, where the volatility
of the embedded equity option has become observable.

Own credit of financial liabilities designated at fair value
The Group’s own credit changes are reflected in valuations for those
financial liabilities designated at fair value, where the Group’s own
credit risk would be considered by market participants. Own credit
effects are not reflected in the valuations of fully collateralized
transactions and other instruments for which it is established market
practice not to include them.

Own credit changes are calculated based on an asset and liability
management revaluation curve (ALMRC) which provides a

Own credit on financial liabilities designated at fair value

single level of discounting for funded instruments within UBS. The
ALMRC is used by UBS’s Investment Bank to value uncollateralized
and partially collateralized funding transactions designated at fair
value and is set by reference to the level at which newly issued UBS
medium term notes (MTNs) are priced. The ALMRC is considered to
be representative of the credit risk which reflects the premium that
market participants require to acquire UBS MTNs. The own credit
results or “Financial liabilities designated at fair value” (predominantly
issued structured products) were as follows:

As of or for the period ended

CHF million

30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09

Total gain / (loss) for the quarter ended

Total gain / (loss) year-to-date

(247) (1,213)

Life-to-date gain
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Note 11 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

Amounts for the quarter represent the change in own credit of
financial instruments designated at fair value during the quarter,
whereas year-to-date amounts represent the change during the year
and life-to-date amounts reflect the cumulative change since initial
recognition. The change in own credit for the period can be analyzed
into two components: (1) changes in fair value that are attributable to
the change in UBS’s credit spreads during the period, and (2) the
effect of “volume changes”, which is the change in fair values
attributable to factors other than credit spreads, such as
redemptions, effects from time decay, changes in the value of
referenced instruments issued by third parties or, in the case of the
life-to-date amount, changes in foreign exchange rates or changes in
other factors relevant to the instruments.

Valuation and sensitivity information by instrument category

This section includes a description of the valuation of certain
significant product categories and related valuation techniques and
models. In addition, sensitivity information for certain significant
instrument categories that are excluded from Management Value-at-
Risk as disclosed in the “Risk and treasury management” section of
this report is provided.

Credit valuation adjustments on monoline credit protection

UBS previously entered into negative basis trades with monolines,
whereby they provided credit default swap protection against UBS-
held underlyings, including residential and commercial mortgage-
backed securities collateralized debt obligations (RMBS and CMBS
CDO), transactions with collateralized loan obligation (CLO) and
asset-backed securities collateralized debt obligations (ABS CDO).
Since the start of the financial crisis, the credit valuation adjustments
(CVA) relating to these monoline exposures have been a source of
valuation uncertainty, given market illiquidity and the contractual
terms of these exposures relative to other monoline-related
instruments.

CVA amounts related to monoline credit protection are based on a
methodology that uses credit default swap (CDS) spreads on the
monolines as a key input in determining an implied level of expected
loss. Where a monoline has no observable CDS spread, a judgment
is made on the most comparable monoline or combination of
monolines and the corresponding spreads are used instead. For
RMBS CDO, CMBS CDO, and CLO asset categories, cash flow
projections are used in conjunction with current fair values of the
underlying assets to provide estimates of expected future exposure
levels. For other asset categories, future exposure is derived from
current exposure levels.

To assess the sensitivity of the monoline CVA calculation to
alternative assumptions, the impact of a 10% increase in monoline
credit default swap spreads (e.g. from 1,000 basis points to 1,100
basis points for a specific monoline) was considered. At 30 June
2010, such an increase would have resulted in an increase in the
monoline credit valuation adjustment of approximately USD 58
million (CHF 63 million).

64

The sensitivity of the monoline credit valuation adjustment to a
decrease of one percentage point in the monoline recovery rate
assumptions (e.g. from 27% to 26% for a specific monoline,
conditional on default occurring) is estimated to result in an increase
of approximately USD 15 million (CHF 16 million) in the CVA. The
sensitivity to credit spreads and recovery rates is substantially linear.

US reference-linked notes (US RLNs)

The US reference-linked notes (US RLNs) consist of a series of
transactions whereby UBS purchased credit protection,
predominantly in note form, on a notional portfolio of fixed income
assets. The referenced assets are comprised of USD Asset-Backed
Securities (ABSs) (primarily commercial mortgage-backed securities
and subprime residential mortgage-backed securities) and / or
corporate bonds and loans across all rating categories. The credit
protection embodied in the RLNs is fair valued using a market
standard approach to the valuation of portfolio credit protection
(Gaussian copula). This approach effectively is intended to simulate
correlated defaults within the portfolio, where the expected losses
and defaults of the individual assets are closely linked to the
observed market prices (spread levels) of those assets. Key
assumptions of the model include correlations and recovery rates.
UBS applies fair value adjustments related to potential uncertainty in
each of these parameters, which are only partly observable. In
addition, UBS applies fair value adjustments for uncertainties
associated with the use of observed spread levels as the primary
inputs. These fair value adjustments are calculated by applying
shocks to the relevant parameters and revaluing the credit protection.
These shocks for correlation, recovery and spreads are set to various
levels depending on the asset type and / or region and may vary over
time depending on the best judgment of the relevant trading and
control personnel. Correlation and recovery shocks are generally in
the reasonably possible range of 5 to 15 percentage points. Spread
shocks vary more widely and depend on whether the underlying
protection is funded or unfunded to reflect cash or synthetic basis
effects.

On 30 June 2010, the fair value of the US RLN credit protection
was approximately USD 867 million (CHF 934 million; 31 March
2010: USD 1,070 million or CHF 1,123 million). This fair value
includes fair value adjustments which were calculated by applying
the shocks described above of approximately USD 41 million (CHF
44 million) on 30 June 2010 (USD 51 million or CHF 54 million on 31
March 2010). The fair value adjustments may also be considered a
measurement of sensitivity.

Non-US reference-linked notes (Non-US RLNSs)

The same valuation model and the same approach to calculation of
fair value adjustments are applied to the non-US reference-linked
note (non-US RLN) credit protection as to the US RLN credit
protection described above, except that the spread is shocked by
10% for European corporate names.
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On 30 June 2010, the fair value of the non-US RLN credit
protection was approximately USD 737 million (CHF 794 million; 31
March 2010: USD 867 million or CHF 911 million). This fair value
includes fair value adjustments which were calculated by applying
the shocks described above of approximately USD 92 million (CHF
99 million) on 30 June 2010 (USD 104 million or CHF 109 million on
31 March 2010). This adjustment may also be considered a
measurement of sensitivity.

Option to acquire equity of the SNB StabFund

UBS’s option to purchase the SNB StabFund’s equity is recognized
on the balance sheet as a derivative at fair value (Positive
replacement values) with changes to fair value recognized in profit
and loss. On 30 June 2010, the fair value of UBS’s call option was
approximately USD 1,460 million (CHF 1,573 million; 31 March 2010:
USD 1,394 million or CHF 1,469 million).

c) Deferred day-1 profit or loss

The model incorporates cash flow projections for all assets within
the fund across various scenarios and is calibrated to market levels
by setting the spread above one-month Libor rates used to discount
future cash flows such that the model-generated price of the
underlying asset pool equals UBS’s assessed fair value of the asset
pool. The model incorporates a model reserve (fair value adjustment)
to address potential uncertainty in this calibration. On 30 June 2010,
this adjustment was USD 268 million (CHF 289 million; 31 March
2010: USD 289 million or CHF 305 million).

On 30 June 2010, a 100 basis point increase in the discount rate
would have decreased the option value by approximately USD 136
million (CHF 147 million) and a 100 basis point decrease would have
increased the option value by approximately USD 153 million (CHF
165 million).

The table reflects financial instruments for which fair value is
determined using valuation models where not all inputs are market-
observable. Such financial instruments are initially recognized at their
transaction price although the values obtained from the relevant

valuation model on day-1 may differ. The table shows the aggregate
difference yet to be recognized in profit or loss at the beginning and
end of the period and a reconciliation of changes in the balance of
this difference (movement of deferred day-1 profit or loss).

Quarter ended

CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09
Balance at the beginning of the period 596 599 600
Deferred profit /(loss) on new transactions 50 49 55
Recognized (profit) / loss in the income statement (80) (58) (10)
Foreign currency ranslation e g 55}
Balance at the end of the period 578 596 620
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Note 12 Reclassification of financial assets

In 2008 and first quarter 2009, financial assets with fair values on
their reclassification dates of CHF 26 billion and CHF 0.6 billion,
respectively, were reclassified from “Trading portfolio assets”

Trading portfolio assets reclassified to loans

to “Loans”. The table below shows the carrying values and fair values
of these financial assets.

CHF billion 30.6.10 31.3.10 31.12.09
Carrying value 15.1 18.2 19.9
Fair value 14.7 17.8 19.0
Pro-forma fair value gain / (loss) (0.4) (0.4) (0.9)

In second quarter 2010, carrying values and pro-forma fair values
decreased by CHF 3.1 billion. The vast majority of the decreases
relates to sales.

Reclassified assets

The table below provides notional values, fair values, and carrying
values by product category, as well as the ratio of carrying value to
notional value.

30.6.10

CHF billion

Ratio of carrying to

Notional value Fair value Carrying value notional value

US student loan and municipal auction rate securities

Monoline protected assets

Leveraged finance

CMBS / CRE (excluding interest-only strips)

Other assets

Total (excluding CMBS interest-only strips)

CMBS interest-only strips

Total reclassified assets

Reclassified financial assets impacted UBS’s income statement as presented in the table below.

Contribution of the reclassified assets to the income statement

For the quarter ended Year-to-date

CHF billion 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.10
Net interest income 0.1 0.2 0.4
Credit loss (expense) / recovery (0.1) 0.1 0.0
Other income! 0.1 0.0 0.1
Impact on operating profit before tax 0.1 0.3 0.5

1 Includes net gains on the disposal of reclassified assets.
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Note 13 Derivative instruments

30.6.10
Notional values Notional values Other
Positive related to Positive Negative related to Negative notional
CHF billion replacement values replacement values replacement values replacement values values?
Derivative instruments

Interest rate contracts 266 11,041 251 11,112 14,905
Credit derivative COMIACES e T3 18327 67 1,259 0
'IEBFé'i';cjﬁ"éié'ﬁéh'é'é"ébihfféét'é .................................................................................................................. g — e fa 3676 5
Equity / index contracts 28 357 31 322 20
Commaodity contracts, including precious metals contracts 5 45 5 42 31
Total, based on IFRS netting' 504 16,471 497 16,410 14,964

Replacement value netting, based on capital adequacy rules (381) (381)

Cash collateral netting (47) (34)
Total, based on capital adequacy netting3 76 16,471 82 16,410 14,964

31.3.10
Notional values Notional values

Positive  related to Positive Negative related to Negative Other
CHF billion replacement values replacement values replacement values replacement values notional values?

Derivative inStruments .................................................................................................
T §Ei {4 EE5E
Credit derivative contracts 1,242 0
Foreign exchange contracts 10
4

Commodity contracts, including precious metals contracts

Total, based on IFRS netting' 14,9194 14,6104
Replacement value netting, based on capital adequacy rules
Gash collatral natling.
Total, based on capital adequacy netting3 15,1604 14,9194 14,6104
31.12.09
Notional values Notional values

Positive  related to Positive Negative related to Negative Other
CHF billion replacement values replacement values replacement values replacement values notional values?
Derivative instruments
Interest rate contracts 215 9,001 204 8,705 16.5194
Credit derivative contracts 79 1,270 71 1,221 0
Foreig GXChangs Gonfragly. gy B g ggga— 5
Equity / index contracts 25 2264 29 2424 154
Commaodity contracts, including precious metals contracts 6 43 6 41 284
Total, based on IFRS netting? 422 13,8844 410 13,3834 16,5644
Replacement value netting, based on capital adequacy rules (313) (313)
Casbh collateral netting (37) (33)
Total, based on capital adequacy netting3 71 13,8844 64 13,3834 16,5644

1 Replacement values based on International Financial Reporting Standards netting. Refer to “Note 23 Derivative instruments and hedge accounting” in the “Financial information” section of UBS’s
Annual Report 2009. 2 Receivables resulting from these derivatives are recognized on UBS’s balance sheet under due from banks and loans: CHF 1.1 billion (30 June 2010) and CHF 1.6 billion (31
March 2010). Payables resulting from these derivatives are recognized on UBS’s balance sheet under due to banks and customers: CHF 1.5 billion (30 June 2010) and CHF 2.1 billion (31 March
2010). 3 lIncludes the impact of netting agreements (including cash collateral) in accordance with Swiss Federal Banking law, based on the IFRS scope of consolidation. # In the second quarter 2010,
UBS corrected the amounts presented in previous periods for the notional values of equity / index contracts and commodity contracts. Amounts previously disclosed have been adjusted as follows:
31.3.2010: related to equity positive replacement values CHF 85 billion, related to equity negative replacement values negative CHF 405 billion and related to equity / commodity other CHF 17 billion /
CHF 26 billion. 31.12.2009: related to equity positive replacement values CHF 78 billion, related to equity negative replacement values CHF 85 billion and related to equity / commodity other CHF 8
billion / CHF 25 billion.
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Note 14 Provisions

CHF million 30.6.10 31.3.10 31.12.09
Operational risks? 80 94 82
Litigation 783 822 1,028
Restructuring ... 430 418 488
Py Gag g 3
Total 1,951 1,975 2,311

1Includes provisions for litigation resulting from security risks and transaction processing risks.

provisions for employee benefits (service anniversaries and sabbatical leave) and other items.

Note 15 Litigation

2 Includes reinstatement costs for leasehold improvement, provisions for onerous lease contracts,

The UBS Group operates in a legal and regulatory environment that
exposes it to significant litigation risks. As a result, UBS is involved in
various disputes and legal proceedings, including litigation,
arbitration, and regulatory and criminal investigations. Such cases
are subject to many uncertainties, and their outcome is often difficult
to predict, including the impact on operations or on the financial
statements, particularly in the earlier stages of a case. In certain
circumstances, to avoid the expense and distraction of legal

proceedings, UBS may, based on a cost-benefit analysis, enter into a

settlement even though UBS denies any wrongdoing. The Group

makes provisions for cases brought against it when, in the opinion of
management after seeking legal advice, it is probable that a liability
exists, and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Certain potentially significant legal proceedings as of 30 June 2010
are described below:

a) Municipal Bonds: In November 2006, UBS and others received
subpoenas from the US Department of Justice, Antitrust Division,
and the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) seeking
information relating to the investment of proceeds of municipal
bond issuances and associated derivative transactions. Both
investigations are ongoing, and UBS is cooperating. In addition,
various state Attorneys General have issued subpoenas seeking
similar information. In the SEC investigation, on 4 February 2008,
UBS received a “Wells notice” advising that the SEC staff is
considering recommending that the SEC bring a civil action
against UBS AG in connection with the bidding of various
financial instruments associated with municipal securities. The
discussions with the SEC are ongoing.

b) Auction Rate Securities: UBS was the subject of an SEC
investigation and state regulatory actions relating to the marketing
and sale of auction rate securities (ARSs) to clients, and to UBS’s
role and participation in ARS auctions and underwriting of ARSs.
UBS was also named in several putative class actions and
individual civil suits and arbitrations. The regulatory actions and
investigations and the civil proceedings followed the disruption in
the markets for these securities and related auction failures since
mid-February 2008. At the end of 2008 UBS entered into
settlements with the SEC, the New York Attorney General
(NYAG) and the Massachusetts Securities Division
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c)

whereby UBS agreed to offer to buy back ARSs from eligible
customers within certain time periods, the last of which begins on
30 June 2010, and to pay penalties of USD 150 million (USD 75
million to the NYAG, USD 75 million to the other states). UBS’s
settlement is largely in line with similar industry regulatory
settlements. UBS has settled with the majority of states and is
continuing to finalize settlements with the rest. The SEC
continues to investigate individuals affiliated with UBS regarding
the trading in ARSs and disclosures.

US Cross-Border: UBS AG has been the subject of a number of
governmental inquiries and investigations relating to its cross-
border private banking services to US private clients during the
years 2000-2007. On 18 February 2009, UBS AG announced that
it had entered into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (DPA) with
the US Department of Justice Tax Division (DOJ) and the United
States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of Florida, and a
Consent Order with the SEC, relating to these investigations.
Pursuant to the DPA, the DOJ agreed that any further prosecution
of UBS will be deferred for a period of at least 18 months, subject
to extension under certain circumstances such as UBS needing
more time to complete the implementation of the exit of its US
cross-border business. If UBS satisfies all of its obligations under
the DPA, the DOJ will refrain permanently from pursuing charges
against UBS relating to the investigation of its US cross-border
business. As part of the resolution of an SEC claim that UBS
acted as an unregulated broker dealer and investment advisor in
connection with its US cross-border business, UBS reached a
consent agreement with the SEC on the same date.

On 19 August 2009, UBS executed a settlement agreement
with the US Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and the DOJ, to
resolve the previously reported enforcement action relating to the
“John Doe” summons served on UBS in July 2008 (UBS-US
Settlement Agreement). At the same time, the United States and
Switzerland entered into a separate but related agreement
(Swiss-US Government Agreement). On 31 March 2010, the
Swiss and US governments signed a protocol amending the
Swiss-US Government Agreement, and the agreement, as
amended by the protocol, was approved by the Swiss Parliament
on 17 June 2010.



Note 15 Litigation (continued)

Financial information

Because UBS complied with all of its obligations set forth in the
UBS-US Settlement Agreement required to be completed by 31
December 2009, the IRS withdrew the “John Doe” summons with
prejudice as to all accounts not covered by the treaty request.
Subject to UBS’s compliance with its further obligations set forth
in the UBS-US Settlement Agreement, the IRS is obligated to
withdraw the “John Doe” summons with prejudice as to the
accounts subject to the treaty request no later than 24 August
2010 upon the actual or anticipated delivery to the IRS of
information relating to accounts covered by the treaty request that
does not differ significantly from the expected results, or upon
receipt of all relevant account information from any source
concerning 10,000 open or closed undisclosed UBS AG
accounts. UBS has completed its delivery of information on over
4,450 accounts to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration (SFTA).
The SFTA is in the process of reviewing this information in order
to determine what can be provided to the IRS under the terms of
the Swiss-US Government Agreement. If the SFTA completes
this review and issues its decisions in late August as expected,
and an independent consultant issues in September a satisfactory
report on our exit from the US cross-border business as
contemplated by the DPA and SEC Consent Order, UBS should
be in a position to achieve a final, comprehensive resolution of
the DPA, the SEC Consent Order and the John Doe Summons
Settlement Agreement by October.

Inquiries Regarding Non-US Cross-Border Businesses: Following
the disclosure of the US cross-border matter and the settlements
with the DOJ and the SEC, tax and regulatory authorities in a
number of countries have made inquiries and served requests for
information located in their respective jurisdictions relating to the
cross-border wealth management services provided by UBS and
other financial institutions. UBS is cooperating with these
requests strictly within the limits of financial privacy obligations
under Swiss and other applicable laws.

Matters Related to the Credit Crisis: UBS is responding to a
number of governmental inquiries and investigations and is
involved in a number of litigations, arbitrations and disputes,
related to the credit crisis and in particular mortgage-related
securities and other structured transactions and derivatives.
These matters concern, among other things, UBS’s valuations,
accounting classifications, disclosures, writedowns, and
contractual obligations, as well as its role as underwriter in
securities offerings for other issuers. In particular, UBS has
communicated with and has responded to inquiries by various
governmental and regulatory authorities, including the Swiss
Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA), the UK Financial
Services Authority (FSA), the SEC, the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority (FINRA), the Financial Crisis Inquiry
Commission (FCIC), the New York Attorney General, and the
U.S. Department of Justice, regarding some of these issues and

others, including: the role of internal control units; the risk control,
valuation, and structuring and marketing of mortgage-related
instruments; compliance with public disclosure rules; and the
business rationales for the launching and the reintegration of
Dillon Read Capital Management. FINMA concluded its
investigation in October 2008.

UBS also has been named in class action litigation and
numerous individual customer arbitrations, and is responding to
state regulators and FINRA regarding its sale of Lehman-issued
structured products which lost substantial value following
Lehman’s bankruptcy in September 2008.

UBS has provided representations and warranties that certain

assets sold as whole loans and certain assets transferred in
securitization transactions conformed to specified guidelines. In
the event of a breach of UBS’s representations and warranties,
UBS may be obligated to repurchase such assets or indemnify
certain parties against losses. UBS is involved in a number of
litigations in which such alleged breaches of representations and
warranties are at issue and has been notified by certain
institutional purchasers and insurers of mortgage loans and
mortgage-backed securities that possible breaches of
representations and warranties may entitle them to repurchase of
assets or other relief. UBS is evaluating these potential claims.
Claims Related to UBS Disclosure: A putative consolidated class
action has been filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York against UBS, a number of current
and former directors and senior officers and certain banks that
underwrote UBS’s May 2008 Rights Offering (including UBS
Securities LLC) alleging violation of the US securities laws in
connection with the firm’s disclosures relating to its positions and
losses in mortgage-related securities, its positions and losses in
auction rate securities, and its US cross-border business.
Defendants have moved to dismiss the complaint for failure to
state a claim. UBS, UBS Americas Inc., UBS Financial Services,
a number of senior officers and employees and various UBS
committees have also been sued in a putative consolidated class
action brought on behalf of current and former participants in two
UBS Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA)
retirement plans in which there were purchases of UBS stock.
Defendants have moved to dismiss the ERISA complaint for
failure to state a claim.
Madoff: In relation to the Madoff investment fraud, UBS, UBS
(Luxembourg) SA and certain other UBS subsidiaries have been
subject to inquiries by a number of regulators, including FINMA
and the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur
Financier (CSSF). Those inquiries concerned two third party
funds established under Luxembourg law substantially all assets
of which were with Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC
(BMIS), as well as certain funds established under offshore
jurisdictions with either direct or indirect exposure to
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BMIS. These funds now face severe losses, and the Luxembourg
funds are in liquidation. The last reported net asset value of the two
Luxembourg funds before revelation of the Madoff scheme was
approximately USD 1.7 billion in the aggregate, although that figure
likely includes fictitious profit reported by BMIS. The documentation
establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in various roles
including custodian, administrator, manager, distributor and
promoter, and indicates that UBS employees serve as board
members. Between February and May 2009 UBS (Luxembourg)
SA responded to criticisms made by the CSSF in relation to its
responsibilities as custodian bank and demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the CSSF that it has the infrastructure and internal
organization in place in accordance with professional standards
applicable to custodian banks in Luxembourg.

On 17 December 2009, a claim in the amount of approximately

EUR 890 million was filed on behalf of the larger of the two
Luxembourg funds by the liquidators of that fund against 15
defendants, including UBS entities, Access Management
Luxembourg SA, Emst & Young, the CSSF and various individuals,
including current and former UBS employees. A claim in the
amount of approximately EUR 305 million on behalf of the smaller
of the two funds was filed by the liquidators of that fund on 22
March 2010 against 11 defendants including UBS entities, Ernst &
Young, the CSSF and various individuals, including current and
former UBS employees. A large number of alleged beneficiaries
have filed claims against UBS entities (and non-UBS entities) for
purported losses relating to the Madoff scheme. The majority of
these cases are pending in Luxembourg. On 4 March 2010 the
Luxembourg court held, based on a sample of test cases, that the
claims brought by the alleged underlying beneficiaries against UBS
and other entities are inadmissible and that the appropriate
claimant is the fund itself, as represented by the liquidators.
Appeals have been filed against the decision of the court. A date
for the hearing of these appeals has not yet been set. In addition,
certain clients of UBS in Germany are exposed to Madoff-managed
positions through third party-funds and funds administered by UBS
entities in Germany.
City of Milan Transactions: In January 2009, the City of Milan filed
civil proceedings against UBS Limited, UBS lItalia SIM Spa and
three other international banks in relation to a 2005 bond issue and
associated derivatives transactions entered into with the City of
Milan between 2005 and 2007. The claim is to recover alleged
damages in an amount which will compensate for terms of the
related derivatives which the City claims to be objectionable. In the
alternative, the City seeks to recover alleged hidden profits
asserted to have been made by the banks in an amount of
approximately EUR 88 million (of which UBS Limited is alleged to
have received approximately EUR 16 million) together with further
damages of not less than EUR 150 million. The claims are made
against all of the banks

on a joint and several basis. UBS is vigorously defending the
claim. In addition, on 17 March 2010, the judge in charge of the
pre-trial phase in the criminal proceedings communicated his
decision to commit to trial two current and one former UBS
employees, together with employees from three other international
banks and a former officer of the City and a former adviser to the
City, for alleged “aggravated fraud”, in relation to the issue of the
bond, led by the four banks, for the City of Milan in 2005 and the
execution, and subsequent restructuring, of certain related
derivative transactions. UBS Limited and the other international
banks also face an administrative charge of failing to have in
place a business organizational model to avoid the alleged
misconduct by employees (the “Law 231 Charges”). The primary
allegation is that the banks, through the actions of their
employees, fraudulently obtained hidden and/or illegal profits by
entering into the derivative contracts with the City of Milan. The
City has also recently filed damages claims in the criminal
proceedings against the UBS individuals and UBS Limited itself as
defendant in respect of the Law 231 Charges.

Kommunale Wasserwerke Leipzig GmbH (KWL): In 2006 and
2007, KWL entered into a series of managed Credit Default Swap
transactions with bank swap counterparties, including UBS AG.
Under the CDS contracts between KWL and UBS, approximately
GBP 100 million has fallen due from KWL but not been paid, and
a further estimated sum of approximately GBP 50 million will fall
due shortly. In January 2010, UBS issued proceedings in the
English High Court against KWL seeking various declarations
from the English court, in order to establish that the swap
transaction between KWL and UBS is valid, binding and
enforceable as against KWL. Those proceedings were served in
March 2010. KWL has made an application to contest the
jurisdiction of the English Court.

In March 2010, KWL issued proceedings in Leipzig, Germany
against UBS and other banks involved in these contracts, claiming
that the swap transactions are void and not binding on the basis of
KWL’s allegation that KWL did not have the capacity or the
necessary internal authorization to enter into the transactions and
that the banks knew this. UBS is contesting the claims and also
intends to contest the jurisdiction of the Leipzig Court.

The other two banks that entered into CDS transactions with
KWL entered into back-to-back CDS transactions with UBS. In
April 2010, UBS AG and UBS Limited issued separate
proceedings in the English High Court against those bank swap
counterparties seeking declarations as to the parties’ obligations
under those transactions. The aggregate amounts UBS contends
are outstanding under those transactions are of roughly
comparable magnitude to the abovementioned sums which have
fallen or will fall due under the UBS/KWL CDS transaction.
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Note 16 Commitments

The table below shows the maximum amount of commitments.

30.6.10 31.3.10 31.12.09
Sub- Sub- Sub-

CHF million Gross participations Net Gross participations Net Gross participations Net
Credit guarantees and
similar instruments 10,049 (0s) . 9644 .. 10616 899) .17 1,180 @22) . 10,958
Performance guarantees
and similar instruments 3410 ] (554) 285 .. 3423 (569) ... 2854 . 3484 (582) .. 2,902
Documentary credits 4,132 (332) 3,800 2,780 (303) 2,477 2,406 (288) 2,117
Total commitments 17,591 (1,292) 16,300 16,819 (1,271) 15,548 17,070 (1,092) 15,977
Undrawn irrevocable
credit facilities 61,339 (1,430) 59,909 60,199 (1,872) 58,327 59,328 (1,793) 57,534
Note 17 Changes in organization
Restructuring expenses and CHF 37 million for impairment in Depreciation of

property and equipment. In addition, the business division incurred
personnel related restructuring charges of CHF 19 million compared
with CHF 21 million in first quarter 2010. The Investment Bank
released personnel related restructuring provisions of CHF 25 million.

During second quarter 2010, UBS incurred restructuring charges of
CHF 119 million. Wealth Management Americas recognized CHF 90
million for real-estate related costs in General and administrative

Note 18 Currency translation rates

The following table shows the principal rates used to translate the financial information of foreign entities into Swiss francs:

Spot rate Average rate Average rate
As of For the quarter ended Year-to-date
30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 30.6.10 30.6.09
1USD 1.08 1.05 1.09 1.10 1.06 1.10 1.08 1.13
1 EUR 1.32 1.42 1.52 1.40 1.45 1.52 1.42 1.51
16GBP 161 1.60 1.79 165 164 174 164 169
g G T g g Jg— g e




Appendix

UBS registered shares

UBS share price chart vs DJ Banks Titans Index
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UBS shares and market capitalization

As of % change from
30.6.10 31.3.10 30.6.09 31.3.10 30.6.09
Share price (CHF) 14.46 17.14 13.29 (16) 9
Market capitalization (CHF million)? 55,393 65,660 42,872 (16) 29

1 Market capitalization is calculated based on the total UBS ordinary shares issued multiplied by the UBS share price at period end. The total UBS ordinary shares as of 30 June 2009 do not reflect
the 332.2 million shares issued through the conversion of mandatory convertible notes issued in December 2008 and converted in August 2009 as well as the 272.7 million shares issued through
the conversion of mandatory convertible notes issued in March 2008 and converted in March 2010. Refer to “Note 8 Earnings per share (EPS) and shares outstanding” in the “Financial
information” section of this report for more information.

UBS ordinary shares are registered shares with a par value of CHF Ticker symbols

0.10 per share. They are issued in the form of Global Registered

Shares (GRS). A Global Registered Share is a security that Trading exchange Bloomberg Reuters
provides direct and equal ownership for all shareholders. It can be SIX Swiss Exchange UBSN VX UBSN.VX

traded and transferred across applicable borders without the need New York Stock Exchange UBS UN UBS.N

for conversion, with identical shares traded on different stock

exchanges in different currencies. The shares are currently listed Security identification codes

on the SIX Swiss Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange. As ISIN CH0024899483
of 16 April 2010, UBS shares have been delisted from the Tokyo Valoren 2.489.948

Stock Exchange (TSE). Cusip CINS H89231 33 8
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Information sources

Reporting publications

Annual publications: Annual report (SAP no. 80531; English and
German). The report includes a letter to shareholders and a
description of: UBS’s strategy, performance and responsibility; the
strategy and performance of the business divisions and the
Corporate Center; risk and treasury management; corporate
governance and executive compensation; and financial information,
including the financial statements. Review (SAP no. 80530; English,

can be ordered from the same website by accessing the order /
subscribe panel on the left-hand side of the screen. Alternatively,
they can be ordered by quoting the SAP number and the language
preference, where applicable, from UBS AG, Print & Publications,
P.O. Box, CH-8098 Zurich, Switzerland.

Other information

German, French and Italian). This booklet contains key information
on UBS’s strategy and financials. Compensation report (SAP no.
2307; English and German). This report discusses compensation
for senior management and the Board of Directors.

The Investor Relations website: www.ubs.com/investors. This
provides the following information on UBS: financial information
(including results-related SEC filings); corporate information; UBS
share price charts and data and dividend information; the UBS
event calendar; and the latest presentations by management for
investors and financial analysts. Available in English and German,
with some sections also available in French and Italian.

Quarterly publications: Letter to shareholders (English, German,
French and ltalian). This letter provides a quarterly update from
executive management on our strategy and performance. Financial
report (SAP no. 80834; English). This report provides a detailed
description of our strategy and performance for the respective
quarter. Results presentations: UBS’s quarterly results presentations are
webcast live. A playback of the most recent presentation can be

. wnl t .ubs.com/presentations.
How to order reports: The annual and quarterly publications are GO LA 2 T E ol

available in PDF format on the internet at www.ubs.com/
investors/topics in the “Financial information” section. Printed
copies

Messaging service / UBS news alert: On the www.ubs.com/
newsalert website, it is possible to subscribe to receive news alerts
about UBS via text message (SMS) or e-mail. Messages are sent in
English, German, French and Italian and it is possible to state
preferences for the theme of the alerts received.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements | This report contains statements that constitute “forward-looking statements”, including but not limited
to management’s outlook for UBS’s financial performance and statements relating to the anticipated effect of transactions and strategic initiatives on UBS’s business and
future development. While these forward-looking statements represent UBS’s judgments and expectations concerning the matters described, a number of risks,
uncertainties and other important factors could cause actual developments and results to differ materially from UBS’s expectations. These factors include, but are not
limited to: (1) future developments in the markets in which UBS operates or to which it is exposed, including movements in securities markets, credit spreads, currency
exchange rates and interest rates; (2) the effect of the current economic environment or other developments on the financial position or creditworthiness of UBS’s clients
and counterparties; (3) changes in the availability of capital and funding, including any changes in UBS’s credit spreads and ratings; (4) changes and possible prospective
changes (announced or unannounced) in financial regulation in Switzerland, the US, the UK and other major financial centers which may impose constraints on or
necessitate changes in the scope and location of UBS’s business activities and in its legal and booking structures, including the imposition of more stringent capital and
liquidity requirements, incremental tax requirements and constraints on remuneration, some of which may affect UBS in a different manner or degree than they affect
competing institutions; (5) possible unanticipated impediments to the final resolution of the US cross-border banking matter; (6) the outcome and possible consequences
of pending or future inquiries or actions concerning UBS’s cross-border banking business by tax or regulatory authorities in various other jurisdictions; (7) the degree to
which UBS is successful in effecting organizational changes and implementing strategic plans, and whether those changes and plans will have the effects intended; (8)
UBS’s ability to retain and attract the employees necessary to generate revenues and to manage, support and control its businesses; (9) changes in accounting
standards or policies, and accounting determinations affecting the recognition of gain or loss, the valuation of goodwill and other matters; (10) limitations on the
effectiveness of UBS’s internal processes for risk management, risk control, measurement and modeling, and of financial models generally; (11) changes in the size,
capabilities and effectiveness of UBS’s competitors; (12) the occurrence of operational failures, such as fraud, unauthorized trading and systems failures, either within
UBS or within a counterparty; and (13) technological developments. Our business and financial performance could be affected by other factors identified in our past and
future filings and reports, including those filed with the SEC. More detailed information about those factors is set forth in documents furnished by UBS and filings made by
UBS with the SEC, including UBS’s Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2009. UBS is not under any obligation to (and expressly disclaims any
obligation to) update or alter its forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Rounding | Numbers presented throughout this report may not add up precisely to the totals provided in the tables and text. Percentages and percent changes are
calculated based on rounded figures displayed in the tables and text and may not precisely reflect the percentages and percent changes that would be derived based on
figures that are not rounded.
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Introduction to Additional Disclosure Required by the SEC

UBS produces regular quarterly reports, which are filed with the SEC under Form 6-K. These reports are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). SEC regulations require certain additional disclosure to be included in registration
statements relating to offerings of securities. Certain of this additional disclosure follows herein, and should be read in conjunction with UBS’s
annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended 31 December 2009, filed with the SEC on 17 March 2010, as well as UBS’s first quarter 2010
report submitted to the SEC on Form 6-K on 4 May 2010 and second quarter 2010 report contained in this Form 6-K.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The following table sets forth UBS’s ratio of earnings to fixed charges on an IFRS basis for the periods indicated. The ratios are calculated
based on earnings from continuing operations. Ratios of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividend requirements are not presented
as there were no preferred share dividends in any of the periods indicated.



For the six
months ended

For the year ended

CHF million, except for ratios 30.6.10 31.12.09 31.12.08 31.12.07 31.12.06 31.12.05
Pre-tax earnings from continuing
operations 1 5,082 (3,173) (28,256) (4,385) 18,654 11,473
Add: Fixed charges 7,177 17,939 60,672 104,795 81,800 50,576
Pre-tax earnings before fixed
charges 12,259 14,766 32,416 100,410 95,454 62,049
Fixed charges:
Interest 6,751 17,016 59,687 103,775 80,880 49,758
Other 2 426 923 985 1,020 920 818
Total fixed charges 7,177 17,939 60,672 104,795 81,800 50,576
Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges 1.71 0.82 0.53 0.96 1.17 1.23

1 Pre-tax earnings from continuing operations includes the elimination of subsidiary, associate and minority interest income and

the addition of dividends received from associates.

2 Other fixed charges is the interest component of rental expense.



Capitalization of UBS

(in millions)

For the period ended

Debt

Short term debts issued
Long term debt issued

1)
1)
Total Debt issued 1)
Minority Interest 2)
Shareholders’ equity

Total capitalization

CHF amounts have been translated into USD at
the rate of CHF 1 = $

includes Money Market Paper and Medium Term Notes as per Balance sheet position based on remaining

maturities
includes Trust preferred securities

31 March 2010

CHF usbD
79,526 73,801
150,486 139,653
230,012 213,454
7,545 7,002
42,800 39,719
280,356 260,174
0.92801

30 June 2010
CHF USD
91,953 85,333
138,523 128,552
230,476 213,885
7,327 6,800
46,017 42,704
283,820 263,389
0.92801



This Form 6-K is hereby incorporated by reference into (1) each of the registration statements of UBS AG on Form F-3 (Registration
Numbers 33-153882; 333-156695; and 333-156695-01 to -17) and Form S-8 (Registration Numbers 333-57878; 333-50320; 333-49216; 333-
49214; 333-49212; 333-49210; 333-103956; 333-127180; 333-127182; 333-127183; 333-127184; 333-162798; 333-162799; and 333-162800)
and into each prospectus outstanding under any of the foregoing registration statements, (2) any outstanding offering circular or similar
document issued or authorized by UBS AG that incorporates by reference any Form 6-K’s of UBS AG that are incorporated into its registration
statements filed with the SEC, and (3) the base prospectus of Corporate Asset Backed Corporation (“CABCO”) dated June 23, 2004
(Registration Number 333-111572), the Form 8-K of CABCO filed and dated June 23, 2004 (SEC File Number 001-13444), and the Prospectus

Supplements relating to the CABCO Series 2004-101 Trust dated May 10, 2004 and May 17, 2004 (Registration Number 033-91744 and 033-
91744-05).
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